
 

 Page 1 of 3  

 
TELECONFERENCE AGENDA 

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2014 
METCALF BUILDING, ROOM 111 

1520 EAST SIXTH AVENUE, HELENA, MONTANA 
***************************************************************************** 

 
NOTE: It is expected that most available Board members will be participating telephonically.  The Board attorney 
and secretary, along with any Board members who so choose, will be present at the location stated above.  
Interested persons, members of the public, and the media are welcome to attend at the location stated above.  
Members of the public and press also may join Board members with prior arrangement.  Contact information for 
Board members is available on the Board’s Website (http://www.deq.mt.gov/ber/index.asp) or from the Board 
Secretary (406-444-2544).  The Board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish 
to participate in this meeting.  Please contact the Board Secretary by telephone or by e-mail at jwittenberg@mt.gov 
no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting to advise her of the nature of the accommodation needed.   
  
9:00 A.M. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES 

1. The Board will vote on adopting the July 25, 2014, meeting minutes. 

II. BRIEFING ITEMS 

A. CONTESTED CASE UPDATE 

1. Enforcement cases assigned to the Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by Trailer Terrace 
Mobile Park, LLC, Dennis Deschamps and Dennis Rasmussen at the Trailer 
Terrace, PWSID No. MT0000025, Great Falls, Cascade County, BER 2012-11 
PWS. On August 1, 2014, the parties submitted a Proposed Schedule with a hearing 
proposed for the week of April 27, 2015. 

b. In the matter of violations of the Sanitation in Subdivisions Act and Public Water 
Supply Laws by Roger Emery at the Sunrise Motel, Sidney, Richland County, 
BER 2013-06 SUB. On June 4, 2014, the attorney for DEQ filed Department of 
Environmental Quality’s Motion for Summary Judgment and Brief in Support, and on 
August 29, 2014, he filed Department’s Motion to Continue Hearing and Request for 
Prehearing Conference. 

c. In the matter of final action regarding the appeal and request for hearing by 
Missoula County and the Clark Fork Coalition regarding DEQ’s issuance of 
MPDES Permit No. MT0000035 issued to M2Green Redevelopment’s site in 
Frenchtown, MT, BER 2014-02/03 WQ. On June 30, 2014, the Board received 

http://www.deq.mt.gov/ber/index.asp
mailto:jwittenberg@mt.gov


BER Agenda Page 2 of 3 September 26, 2014 

Stipulation for Dismissal of Administrative Appeal signed by the parties. An order to 
dismiss the appeal was presented to the Board at its July 25 meeting. The Board did not 
take action on the order. 

2. Non-enforcement cases assigned to the Hearings Examiner 

a. In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Yellowstone 
Energy Limited Partnership (YELP) regarding issuance of MPDES Permit NO. 
MT0030180 for YELP’s facility in Billings, MT, BER 2014-01 WQ. On April 29, 
2014, the attorney for YELP filed Unopposed Motion to Stay Proceedings, and on May 
6, 2014, the Interim Hearings Examiner issued Order Granting Motion to Stay 
Proceedings, requiring a status report no later than August 1, 2014. On August 5, 2014, 
the Board received Status Report from the attorneys for appellant YELP. 

3. Contested Cases not assigned to a Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Western Energy 
Company (WECO) regarding its MPDES Permit No. MT0023965 issued for 
WECO’s Rosebud Mine in Colstrip, BER 2012-12 WQ. On April 9, 2014, the 
hearings examiner issued an Order Granting the Joint Unopposed Motion for Partial 
Remand of Permit to Department of Environmental Quality and for Suspension of 
Proceedings. On May 14, 2014, DEQ filed a Status Report regarding the matter. A 
modified permit will be made available for public comment on or before June 9, 2014. 

b. In the matter of the notice of appeal for hearing by Montana Environmental 
Information Center regarding DEQ’s approval of coal mine permit No. C1993017 
issued to Signal Peak Energy, LLC, for Bull Mountain Mine No. 1 in Roundup, 
MT, BER 2013-07 SM. The following documents have been filed in this matter since 
the July 25 Board meeting: 

• 7/11/14 – Appellant Montana Environmental Information Center’s Reply in 
Support of Motion for Summary Judgment 

• 7/30/14 – DEQ’s Surreply Brief in Response to MEIC Reply Brief Filed July 7, 
2014 

• 7/30/14 – DEQ’s Unopposed Motion for Leave to File Surreply Brief and to 
Extend Briefing Schedule 

• 7/30-14 – DEQ’s Request for Oral Argument 
• 7/30/14 – DEQ’s Notice of Errata for Response Brief Filed May 30, 2014 
• 8/4/14 – Order Granting Leave to File Surreply and Extending Briefing Schedule 
• 8/8/14 – Signal Peak Energy, LLC’s Combined Reply in Support of Cross-Motion 

for Summary Judgment and Surreply to MEIC’s Motion for Summary Judgment 
• 8/25/14 – Appellant Montana Environmental Information Center’s Surreply in 

Support of Summary Judgment 

B. OTHER BRIEFING ITEMS 

1. The department will provide the Board with a report regarding the air quality permit fees 
that are anticipated for the next calendar year, as required by ARM 17.8.510(1). 



BER Agenda Page 3 of 3 September 26, 2014 

III. ACTION ITEMS 

A. REPEAL, AMENDMENT, OR ADOPTION OF FINAL RULES 

1. In the matter of final adoption of the proposed amendments to ARM 17.8.501 
Definitions and 17.8.504 Air Quality Permit Application Fees, to adjust air quality permit 
application fees to more closely reflect the cost of processing a permit application, clarify 
relevant definitions, and make other housekeeping amendments, as noticed in MAR 17-
360. 

2. In the matter of final adoption of proposed amendments to ARM 17.8.818 Review of 
Major Stationary Sources and Major Modifications – Source Applicability and 
Exemptions and 17.8.820 Source Impact Analysis, to reflect changes to major New 
Source Review Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality permitting 
regulations, Significant Impact Levels (SILs) and Significant Monitoring Concentration 
(SMC) for PM2.5, as noticed in MAR 17-361. 

B. NEW CONTESTED CASES 

1. In the matter of Phillips 66 Company’s appeal of Outfall 006 Arsenic Limits in 
Montana Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit No. MT0000256, 
Billings, Yellowstone County, MT, BER 2014-05 WQ. The Board received the 
appeal on August 6, 2014. The Board may appoint a permanent hearings examiner or 
decide to hear the matter. 

2. In the matter of Columbia Falls Aluminum Company’s (CFAC) appeal of DEQ’s 
modification of Montana Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit No. 
MT0030066, Columbia Falls, Flathead County, MT, BER 2014-06 WQ. The Board 
received the appeal on August 22, 2014. The Board may appoint a permanent hearings 
examiner or decide to hear the matter. 

3. In the matter if violations of the Opencut Mining Act by Bay Materials, LLC at 
Normont Farms Pit, Toole County, Montana, BER 2014-07 OC. The Board 
received the appeal on August 29, 2014. The Board may appoint a permanent hearings 
examiner of decide to hear the matter. 

IV. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

Under this item, members of the public may comment on any public matter within the 
jurisdiction of the Board that is not otherwise on the agenda of the meeting. Individual 
contested case proceedings are not public matters on which the public may comment. 

V. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

MINUTES 

July 25, 2014 
 
 

Call to Order  

The Board of Environmental Review’s regularly scheduled meeting was called to order by Madam 
Chair Shropshire at 9:01 a.m., on Friday, July 25, 2014, in Room 111 of the Metcalf Building, 
1520 East Sixth Avenue, Helena, Montana. 

Attendance 

Board Members Present: Madam Chair Shropshire, Larry Mires, Marietta Canty, Heidi Kaiser, Chris 
Tweeten, and Joe Russell 

Board Members Absent: Joan Miles 

Board Attorney Present: Ben Reed, Attorney General’s Office, Department of Justice 

Board Secretary Present: Joyce Wittenberg 

Court Reporter Present: Laurie Crutcher, Crutcher Court Reporting 

Department Personnel Present: Tom Livers (Deputy Director); Chris Saeger – Director’s Office; John 
North, Paul Nicol, Kirsten Bowers, Kurt Moser, and Norman Mullen – Legal; John 
DeArment – Permitting & Compliance Division; Jon Dilliard, Rachel Clark, Eugene Pizzini, 
Barb Kingery – Public Water Supply & Subdivisions Bureau; Jon Kenning, Tom Reid, Laura 
Andersen, Freddi Haab, and Paul Skubinna – Water Protection Bureau; John Arrigo – 
Enforcement Division; George Mathieus and Kari Smith – Planning Division; Eric Urban, 
Mike Suplee, Rosie Sada, and David Feldman – Water Quality Planning Bureau; Jeff Blend – 
Energy Pollution Prevention Bureau; Todd Teegarden – Technical & Financial Assistance 
Bureau 

Interested Persons Present (Disclaimer: Names are spelled as best they can be read from the official sign-in sheet.): 
Mark Fitzwater, Ron Alles – City of Helena; Dave Galt – Montana Petroleum Association; Tina 
Laidlaw – Environmental Protection Agency 

 



BER Minutes Page 2 of 5 July 25, 2014 

I.A.1 Review and approve May 30, 2014, Board meeting minutes. 

     Chairman Shropshire asked if anyone had comments on the draft minutes. No one 
had comments. 

     Mr. Mires MOVED to approve the minutes as written. Mr. Tweeten SECONDED 
the motion. The motion CARRIED with a 6-0 vote. 

II.A.1.a In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by Trailer Terrace Mobile 
Park, LLC, Dennis Deschamps and Dennis Rasmussen at the Trailer Terrace, PWSID 
No. MT0000025, Great Falls, Cascade County, BER 2012-11 PWS.  

     Mr. Reed said he had not heard from the parties about settlement, so he expects this 
will go to hearing. 

II.A.1.b In the matter of violations of the Sanitation in Subdivision Act and Public Water Supply 
Laws by Roger Emery at the Sunrise Motel, Sidney, Richland County, BER 2013-06 SUB.  

     Mr. Reed said he is waiting for Sunrise Motel to respond to the department’s motion 
for summary judgment. 

II.A.2.a In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Yellowstone Energy 
Limited Partnership (YELP)) regarding issuance of MPDES Permit No. MT0030180 for 
YELP’s facility in Billings, MT, BER 2014-01 WQ.  

     Mr. Reed said he anticipates receiving a status report from the parties in this matter by 
August 1. 

II.A.3.a In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Western Energy 
Company (WECO) regarding its MPDES Permit No. MT0023965 issued for WECO’s 
Rosebud Mine in Colstrip, BER 2012-12 WQ. 

     Mr. Reed said there has been no movement in the matter. He confirmed that a 
modified permit is not available yet. 

II.A.3.b In the matter of the notice of appeal for hearing by Montana Environmental Information 
Center regarding DEQ’s approval of coal mine permit No. C1993017 issued to Signal 
Peak Energy, LLC, for Bull Mountain Mine No. 1 in Roundup, BER 2013-07 SM.  

     Mr. Reed said the Board received MEIC’s reply in support of their motion for 
summary judgment on July 7. He said all the parties believe the case can be finalized 
without a hearing based on the motions for summary judgment, and he concurs. 

III.A.1 In the matter of DEQ’s proposal to initiate rulemaking to amend ARM 17.30.1101, 
17.30.1102, 17.30.1105, 17.30.1106, 17.30.1107, 17.30.1111, 17.30.1341 and 17.30.1342 
pertaining to Montana pollutant discharge elimination system (MPDES) permits, purpose 
and scope, definitions, permit requirements, exclusions, designation procedures: small 
municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s), application procedures, permit requirements, 
general permits and conditions applicable to all permits and repeal of ARM 17.30.1110, 
17.30.1115 and 17.30.1117 application procedures: general, notice of intent procedures, and 
transfer of permit coverage. 



BER Minutes Page 3 of 5 July 25, 2014 

     Mr. Reid described the rule changes requested and provided rationale for the changes. He 
pointed out some typos in the notice that need to be corrected. He said the department is 
asking the Board to initiate the rulemaking.  

     Mr. Reed and Mr. Arrigo responded to questions from Board members.  

     Chairman Shropshire asked if any members of the public would like to comment on the 
proposed rulemaking.  

     Mr. Alles commented on the MS4 piece of the rulemaking and said he will be 
commenting more in depth at the hearing.  

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking and assign Mr. Reed as 
the permanent hearings examiner. Mr. Tweeten so MOVED. Ms. Canty SECONDED the 
motion. The motion CARRIED with a 6-0 vote. 

III.B.2 (Taken out of order because of the logistics of this topic’s interaction with III.B.1.) 

In the matter of final action regarding the proposed amendments to Title 17, Chapter 38, 
Sub-Chapter 1, Public Water and Sewer Plans, Cross Connections, and Drilling Water 
Wells, updating Department Circulars DEQ-1 and DEQ-3 related to public drinking 
water design standards to the 2014 edition, clarification of the requirements for the 
submission of plans and specifications, clarification of the engineering review fee tables, 
updating expedited checklists, adding new Department  Circular DEQ-10 describing the 
use of springs as a public source and new Department Circular DEQ-16 describing the 
use of cisterns for non-community public water systems, and amendments to Title 17, 
Chapter 36, Sub-chapter 3, Subdivisions/On-site Subsurface Wastewater Treatment, to 
adopt the 2014 editions of DEQ-1 and DEQ-3. 

     Mr. Pizzini said the Board initiated the rulemaking at its January 21, 2014, meeting, and 
that a public hearing was held on March 7. He said at the end of the comment period ten 
general comments had been received, nine of which the department concurred with. He said 
the remaining comment could be dealt with through the deviation process.   

     Mr. Pizzini and Ms. Clark responded to questions from Board members.  

     Chairman Shropshire asked if any member of the public would like to comment on the 
rulemaking. No one commented. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to adopt the Presiding Officer’s Report, the 
House Bill 311 and 521 analyses, the department’s proposed responses to comments, and 
rules in Circulars DEQ-1, DEQ-3, DEQ-10, and DEQ-16 with modifications indicated. Mr. 
Russell so MOVED. Ms. Kaiser SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a 
6-0 vote. 

III.B.1 In the matter of final action regarding Title 17, Chapter 36, Sub-chapter 9, On-Site 
Subsurface Wastewater Treatment Systems by updating definitions and Table 1 Setback 
Distances to provide consistency between the subdivision rules in Title 17, Chapter 36 
and DEQ Circular 4, 2013, edition; Title 17, Chapter 38, Sub-chapter 101(4)(d) to adopt 
by reference the proposed changes to Title 17, Chapter 36 for Subdivisions; specifically 
ARM 17.36.320 through 17.36.323, 17.36.325 and to remove the adoption by reference 



BER Minutes Page 4 of 5 July 25, 2014 

to ARM 17.36.327; Title 17 Chapter 38, Sub-chapters 106(2) (a), (d), and (e) to provide  
fee structure consistency for review of public water supply and sewage systems that 
correspond to the proposed changes to Department Circular DEQ-1, the adopted 
changes to Department Circular DEQ-4, 2013 edition, and new proposed Department 
Circular DEQ-10; Title 17, Chapter 38, Sub-chapter 106(2) to add a provision (f) for the 
review of public water supply systems that corresponds to proposed Department Circular 
DEQ-16. 

     Ms. Kingery said the Board initiated the rulemaking in April and a hearing was held 
May 19. She said six people commented during the comment period, and that some of 
the comments were outside the scope of the rulemaking. She asked the Board to consider 
the rule package for final adoption. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for public comment on the rulemaking. There was no 
response. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to adopt the Presiding Officer’s report, the 
House Bill 521, 311, and small business impact analyses, and the rules with modifications 
indicated in the draft notice of amendment. Mr. Mires so MOVED. Ms. Canty 
SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a 6-0 vote. 

III.B.3 In the matter of final action regarding new Department Circular DEQ-12A “Montana 
base numeric nutrient standards” for surface waters, and the amendment of rules in MAR 
Notice No. 17-356 to incorporate the base numeric nutrient standards into the water-
quality standards. The Department is requesting the new circular and the rule 
amendments be adopted by the Board. 

     Mr. Mathieus addressed the Board. He said the department had been collecting data 
for this since about 2000. He said public hearings were held and comments received were 
fairly equal in support and opposition. He said amendments were made in response to 
some of the comments. He said the department recommends adoption of DEQ Circular 
12A, and the amendments of the rules in the notice.  

     Mr. Mathieus thanked everyone who participated in the process. 

     Mr. Mathieus and Mr. North responded to questions from the Board.  

     Chairman Shropshire asked if any members of the public would like to comment on 
the rulemaking. 

     Mr. Galt said the Montana Petroleum Association stands opposed to the rule due to 
language within it and the non-severability clause. He also offered comments on behalf 
of the Montana Mining Association indicating they, too, are opposed to the rules due to 
the non-severability issue and concerns that the nutrient package not allowing for new 
business. 

     Mr. Mathieus and Mr. Galt responded to additional questions from the Board. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to adopt the Presiding Officer’s report, the 
House Bill 311 and 521 analyses, the department proposed responses to comments, and the 
rules in Circular DEQ-12A with the modifications indicated in the draft notice of 



BER Minutes Page 5 of 5 July 25, 2014 

amendment. Mr. Russell so MOVED. Mr. Tweeten SECONDED the motion. The motion 
CARRIED with a 5-1 vote. 

III.C.1 In the matter of final action regarding the appeal and request for hearing by Missoula 
County and the Clark Fork Coalition regarding DEQ’s issuance of MPDES Permit No. 
MT0000035 issued to M2Green Redevelopment’s site in Frenchtown, MT, BER 2014-
02/03 WQ. 

     Mr. Reed said the parties stipulated to dismiss the appeal, agreeing that this is not the 
proper venue for the action. He said the dismissal is contingent on the District Court and 
Supreme Court agreeing with the parties’ assessment of the law.  

     The Board discussed the matter further. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to authorize her to sign the order dismissing 
the case. Discussion ensued. The Board did not take action on the matter. 

III.C.2 In the matter of final action regarding violations of the Clean Air Act of Montana by 
Myrstol Logging, Inc., Clyde Park, Park County, MT, BER 2014-04 AQ. 

     Mr. Reed said the appellant has withdrawn his appeal. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to authorize her to sign the order dismissing 
the appeal. Mr. Tweeten so MOVED. Ms. Canty SECONDED the motion. The motion 
CARRIED with a 6-0 vote. 

IV. General Public Comment 

     Chairman Shropshire asked if any member of the audience would like to speak to any 
matters before the Board. There were no comments. 

V. Adjournment 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to adjourn. Ms. Kaiser so MOVED. Mr. 
Tweeten SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED 6-0. 

     The meeting adjourned at 11:18 a.m. 

 

Board of Environmental Review July 25, 2014, minutes approved: 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
      CHAIRMAN 
      BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
 
      __________________ 
      DATE 



BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
AGENDA ITEM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULE ADOPTION 

Agenda Item # III.A.1. 

Agenda Item Summary: The department requests that the board act on MAR Notice 
No. 17-360, published on June 26, 2014, to amend certain air quality permit application 
fees , clarify relevant definitions, and make other housekeeping amendments. 

List of Affected Board Rules: This rulemaking would amend ARM 17.8.501 and 
17.8.504. 

Affected Parties Summary: The proposed amendments to the air quality permit 
application fees would affect any new or modified major source subject to ARM Title 17, 
chapter 8, subchapters 8, 9, 10, or 12. 

Scope of Proposed Proceeding: The board is considering final action on adoption of 
amendments to the above-referenced rules . The amendments were proposed in 
Montana Administrative Register (MAR) Notice No. 17-360. The BER is considering 
changes to that proposal because of comments received . The proposed amendments 
are contained in the draft notice of amendment. 

Background: The board is required by 75-2-111 (5) , MCA, to adopt "by rule ... a 
schedule of fees required for" air quality "permits , permit applications, and registrations 
.... " The board has done so by adopting ARM 17.8.504. Section 75-2-112(1), MCA, 
states that the "department [of environmental quality] is responsible for the 
administration" of the air quality laws. Under 75-2-220, MCA, a Montana air quality 
permit applicant is required to submit to the department a fee sufficient to cover the 
reasonable costs, direct and indirect, of developing and administering the permitting 
requirements, including : 

1. Reviewing and acting upon the application; 
2. Implementing and enforcing the terms and conditions of the permit; 
3. Preparing generally applicable regulations or guidance; 
4. Modeling , analysis, and demonstrations; 
5. Providing support to sources under the small business stationary source 

technical and environmental compliance assistance program. 

Under the proposed amendments, the application fees for minor and synthetic 
minor sources would remain unchanged. However, sources seeking new or modified 
major source permits , i.e ., major New Source Review-Prevention of Significart 
Deterioration (NSR-PSD) and Title V operating permits , would see an application fee 
increase. 

Although the costs of processing and issuing air quality permits have increased , 
permit application fees have remained the same since 2000. The complexity of 
processing permit applications for major sources of air pollution subject to NSR-PSD 

1 



and/or Title V permitting programs far exceeds the fees currently collected for 
processing these applications . Further, annual operating fees paid by existing facilities 
have traditionally subsidized a significant portion of the department's costs of 
processing permit applications for new facilities , which initially do not pay operating 
fees . The proposed increase in the application fee for new or modified facilities would 
more accurately reflect the costs of processing these applications. 

The amendments to ARM 17.8.504(1 )(a) , as initially proposed , unintentionally 
delete the fee for minor modifications at major sources. As clearly reflected in the 
statement of reasonable necessity, the only substantive change to be made in ( 1 )(a) is 
an increase in the fee for major permit modifications. Elimination of the fee for minor 
mod ifications is not indicated in the statement of reasonable necessity. Retention of 
this fee is necessary to adequately fund the program . 

Hearing Information: A public hearing was held on July 16, 2014. The Hearing 
Examiner's Report is attached. 

Board Options: The board may: 

1. Adopt the proposed amendments as set forth in the attached Notice of 
Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment; 

2. Adopt the proposed amendments with revisions that the board finds are 
appropriate and that are consistent with the scope of the Notice of Public 
Hearing on Proposed Amendment and the record in this proceeding ; or 

3. Decide to not adopt the amendments. 

DEQ Recommendation: The department recommends the board adopt the rules with 
the modification indicated in the draft Notice of Amendment. 

Enclosures: 

1. Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment 
2. HB 521 and 311 Analyses 
3. Department Comment 
4. Hearing Examiner's Report 
5. Draft Notice of Amendment 

2 



-1321 -

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM ) 
17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to ) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

definitions and air quality permit ) 
application fees ) (AIR QUALITY) 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On July 16, 2014 , at 1:00 p.m. , the Board of Environmental Review will 
hold a public hearing in Room 111 , Metcalf Building , 1520 East Sixth Avenue, 
Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules . 

2. The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact Elois 
Johnson , Paralegal , no later than 5:00p.m ., July 7, 2014, to advise us of the nature 
of the accommodation that you need . Please contact Elois Johnson at Department 
of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901 ; phone 
(406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 

3. The rules proposed to be amended provide as follows, stricken matter 
interlined , new matter underlined : 

17.8.501 DEFINITIONS For the purposes of this subchapter, the following 
definitions apply: 

(1) remains the same . 
(2) "Major modification" has the same meaning as in ARM 17.8.801. 
f2-t .Ql "Modified source facility" means a facility for which an application to 

modify, as defined in ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 7 17.8.740, is submitted to 
the department. 

f31 .(1l "New source facility" means a source, as defined in ARM Title 17, 
chapter 8, subchapter 1, facility for which the department has not previously issued a 
Montana air quality permit. 

(5) "New major stationary source" means a major stationary source, as 
defined in ARM 17.8.801, for which the department has not previously issued a 
Montana air quality permit. 

(4) and (5) remain the same, but are renumbered (6) and (7) . 
(6) "Source type A" means a facility subject to the provisions of ARM Title 17, 

chapter 8, subchapter 12. 
(7) "Source type 8" means a facility subject to the provisions of ARM Title 17, 

chapter 8, subchapter 7. 
(8) "Source type NSR/PSD" means a facility subject to the provisions of ARM 

Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 8, 9, or 10. 
(9) "Source type S/SM" means a facility subject to the provisions of ARM 

17.8.1204(3) . 

MAR Notice No. 17-360 12-6/26/14 



-1322-

AUTH : 75-2-111, MCA 
IMP: 75-2-211 , MCA 

REASON: The board is proposing to amend definitions in (2) and (3), 
renumber them to (3) and (4), and add two definitions as (2) and (5). The board is 
also proposing to eliminate definitions in (6) through (9) . The proposed amendments 
to (2) and (3) would replace "source" with "facility," which would make the use of 
those terms consistent throughout the ARM . The proposed new definitions in (2) 
and (5) would add definitions of "major modification" and "new major stationary 
source" because those terms would be used in ARM 17.8.504 to define classes of 
sources for purposes of establishing fees. Those terms are already defined in ARM 
17.8.801 and the proposed additions would refer to that rule. The definitions in (6) 
through (9) are proposed to be eliminated because the proposed amendments to 
ARM 17.8.504 would eliminate the defined terms from the ARM. Because terms that 
are not used should not be defined, the board is also proposing to eliminate the 
definitions in (6) through (9) . 

17.8.504 AIR QUALITY PERMIT APPLICATION FEES (1) An applicant 
submitting a Montana air quality permit application,as required in ARM Title 17, 
chapter 8, subchapters 7, 8, 9, or 10, shall submit aR the appropriate application fee 
as provided in (1 )(a) , (b), and (c) follows : 

(a) the follmving table sets forth source types and associated fees: 

Source Type 

NSR/PSD 

A 

~ 

g 

New Source 

$15 ,000 

$1 ,200 

$1 ,000 

$OOG 

Modified Source 

(b) $500 for an application for a portable facility ; and 
(c) $500 for an application to register an oil and gas well facility . 
(a) for a facility subject to ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 7 and 8, 9, or 

(i) for a new major stationary source- $15 ,000; 
(ii) for a major modification - $3,500; 
(b) for a facility subject to ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 7, and not 

subject to subchapters 8, 9, or 10, that is : 
(i) required by ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 12 to obtain an operating 

permit: 
(A) for a new facility- $2,000; 
(8) for a modified facility - $1 ,500; 
(ii) a new facility that is requesting an exemption under ARM 17.8.1204(3)

$1 ,000; or 
(iii) a modified facility that has received or is requesting an exemption under 

ARM 17.8.1204(3)- $500; 

12-6/26/14 MAR Notice No. 17-360 



-1323-

(c) for a facility subject solely to ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 7: 
(i) for a new facility - $800; 
(ii) for a modified facility - $500; 
(iii) for a portable facility- $500. 
(2) An applicant submitting one or more of the following an air quality 

operating permit applications,as required in ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 12, 
shall submit an appropriate application feeJ. of $500 for each application as follows : 

(a) an application for a new air quality operating permit- $6,500; 
(b) an application for an air quality operating permit renewal- $2,000; or 
(c) an application for a significant modification te of an air quality operating 

permit - $1 ,500. 
(3) An air quality permit application is incomplete until the proper appropriate 

application fee is paid to the department. 
(4) and (5) remain the same. 

AUTH : 75-2-111 , 75-2-220 , 75-2-234 , MCA 
IMP: 75-2-211 , 75-2-220, 75-2-234 , MCA 

REASON : The board is proposing to amend (1) through (2)(c) . In existing 
(1 )(a), a table uses abbreviations of source categories to set application fees . The 
abbreviations are defined 'in ARM 17.8.501 (6) through (9) . The board is proposing 
to eliminate those definitions and also the table in ARM 17.8.504 that uses those 
abbreviations. The sources would instead be categorized for fee purposes by the 
rule subchapter(s) under which the source is regulated . For example, the 
abbreviation "NSR/PSD" is defined in existing ARM 17.8.501 (8) as "a facility subject 
to the provisions of ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 8, 9, or 1 0." Then , existing 
ARM 17.8.504(1 )(a) uses the term "NSR/PSD" to set the fee for that category. A 
proposed amendment in ARM 17.8.504(1 )(a) would substitute the phrase "a facility 
subject to ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 7 and 8, 9, or 1 0" for "NSR/PSD." 
Similar amendments are proposed for the other categories used in existing ARM 
17.8.504(1)(a) to set fees . This is being proposed to make the rule simpler and 
clearer. The board believes that the abbreviated terms were not easy to understand 
without reference to the definitions rule and that the proposed amendments would 
make the rule easier for the public and a regulated facility to understand. 

In addition , in (1 )(a) , the board is proposing to amend the language that 
establishes fees for permits for new major stationary sources and major 
modifications by incorporating the definitions of those terms from ARM 17.8.801 , 
which contains definitions used in ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 8 to regulate 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) permitting in "attainment" areas, where 
certa in contaminants do not exceed national ambient air quality standards (NAAQS) . 
The PSD program is one part of the New Source Review (NSR) program, which also 
includes permitting in ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 9 and 10, for major 
stationary sources or major modifications in areas where the NAAQS are exceeded 
("nonattainment areas") or areas with sources that may contribute to exceedances in 
a nonattainment area . The incorporation of definitions from ARM 17.8.801 is 
necessary because those terms are already defined in that rule and the terms in the 
fee rule must be consistent with the definitions and use of those terms in the 

MAR Notice No. 17-360 12-6/26/14 



-1324-

regu latory rules in ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 8, 9, and 10. 
The proposed amendments would also increase certain application fees for 

Montana air quality permits (MAQPs) for facilities that require major New Source 
Review (NSR) permits or Montana air quality operating permits (Title V) . 
Specifically, the board is proposing the following permit application fee amendments: 

ARM 17 .8.504(1 )(a)(ii) - MAQP for an NSR major modification from $500 to 
$3,500 

ARM 17.8.504(1)(b)(i)(A)- MAQP for a New Title V facility from $1,200 to 
$2 ,000 

ARM 17.8.504(1 )(b)(i)(B)- MAQP for a Modified Title V facility from $500 to 
$1 ,500 

ARM 17.8.504(2)(a)- New Title V operating permit from $500 to $6 ,500 
ARM 17.8.504(2)(b)- Title V operating permit renewal from $500 to $2 ,000 
ARM 17.8.504(2)(c) -Title V operating permit modification from $500 to 

$1 ,500 

The board is required by statute to "adopt a schedule of fees required for 
permits , permit applications, and registrations .. . . " Section 75-2-111 (5) , MCA. 
While the board is responsible for adopting the fee schedule, an air permit applicant 
has the responsibility to "submit to the department a fee sufficient to cover the 
reasonable costs , direct and indirect, of developing and administering the permitting 
requ irements" of the air quality laws and rules . Section 75-2-220, MCA. Currently, 
permit applicants subject to the requirements of the department's Title V and NSR 
Montana air quality permit programs pay permit application fees that do not cover 
the costs incurred by the department in processing these permit applications. These 
costs are funded instead by the annual operating fees paid by existing businesses. 
This creates a situation where existing businesses are subsidizing new businesses. 
The board is proposing to reduce that subsidy by increasing the application fees for: 
(a) a facility subject to NSR major modification ; (b) a new or modified MAQP for a 
facility subject to Title V operating permits ; and (c) a new Title V operating permit, 
renewal , or modification. 

The proposed levels of fee increases were developed in consultation with 
stakeholders. Those levels do not totally eliminate the subsidy, but will reduce it by 
a substantial amount. 

In an effort to determine potential monetary impacts on facilities subject to the 
proposed application fee amendments , the board averaged the number of potentially 
affected applications received by the department per year over calendar years 2009-
201 3, which represents the most recent five-year period for which data is available. 
The following table shows the cumulative increase in air quality permit application 
fees for the average year within that period : 

12-6/26/14 MAR Notice No. 17-360 



-1325-

Average 

Rule (all in ARM 
Average Number Increase 

Application Type of From 
Title 17, chapter 8) 

ApplicationsNear Proposed 
RuleNear 

MAQP {Montana Air 
Qualitv Permit) 

NSR Major Modification subchapters 7 and 8, 0.2 $600.00 
9, or10 

New MAQP for a subchapters 7 and 8.2 $6,560.00 
Facility Requiring an 12 
Operating Permit 
MAQP Modification for a subchapters 7 and 1.2 $1 ,200.00 
Facility Requiring an 12 
Operating Permit 

v X . ; _, " :{ . ~ • )J 

TOT,Ab 'l~;~· 
•' ~~2~)~f)~l5 &'go; l f~$s', 3so. oo~'~ ' ·"' \ .. . < 

O~erating {Title V} 
Permit 

New subchapter 12 1 $6,000.00 

Renewal subchapter 12 12 $18 ,000.00 

Modification subchapter 12 10 $10 ,000.00 

· ·.' 0 

... ' ,'~'~t· ,. :i~.t,~t : '''i < i •. 

. ~j~J 0:,' .; 
.. ~WJtY '~~ ; AA 

TOTAL ,· I' , "~·' . ' $34,000.00 " 

4. Concerned persons may submit their data , views, or arguments, either 
orally or in writing , at the hearing . Written data , views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to Elois Johnson , Paralegal , Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 
E. Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901; faxed to (406) 
444-4386 ; ore-mailed to ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., July 24, 2014 . 
To be guaranteed consideration , mailed comments must be postmarked on or 
before that date. 

5. Ben Reed , attorney for the board , or another attorney for the Agency Legal 
Services Bureau , has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing . 

6. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e
mail , and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 
person wishes to receive notices regarding: air quality; hazardous waste/waste oil ; 
asbestos control ; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification ; solid 
waste;.junk vehicles ; infectious waste ; public water supply; public sewage systems 
regulation ; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation ; major facility siting ; opencut mine 

MAR Notice No. 17-360 12-6/26/14 



-1326-

reclamation ; strip mine reclamation ; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans; water 
quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks ; MEPA; or general 
procedural rules other than MEPA. Notices will be sent by e-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson, Paralegal , Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 E . Sixth 
Ave ., P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901 , faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386 , e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board . 

7. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302 , MCA, do not apply. 

8. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111 , MCA, the board has 
determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rules will not 
significantly and directly impact small businesses. 

Reviewed by: 

Is! John F. North 
JOHN F. NORTH 
Rule Reviewer 

BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

BY: Is/ Robin Shropshire 
ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, June 16, 2014. 

12-6/26/14 MAR Notice No. 17-360 



Montana Department of 

......_~~ ENVffiONMENTAL MEMo 
TO: 
FROM: 
SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Board of Environmental Review /}11(1/JA . 
Norman]. Mullen, Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Staff Attorney ' j 'Y' I' V'\ 
House Bill 521 (stringency) and House Bill311 (takings) review of rulemaking 
concerning the amendment of ARM 17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to definitions 
and air quality permit application fees) in ARM Notice No. 17-360 (publ. 6/ 26 / 14) 
July 15, 2014 

HB 521 REVIEW 
(Comparing Stringency of State and Local Rules 

to Any Comparable Federal Regulations or Guidelines) 

Sections 7 5-2-111 and 207, MCA, codify the air quality provisions of House Bill 521, from the 199 5 
legislative session, by requiring that the Board of Environmental Review (Board), prior to adopting a 
rule to implement the Clean Air Act of Montana that is more stringent than a comparable federal 
regulation or guideline that addresses the same circumstances, make certain written findings after a 
public hearing and receiving public comment. 

In this proceeding, the Board is proposing to amend ARM 17.8.501 and 17.8.504 to delete some 
definitions used to establish fees and to increase some fees for preconstruction and operating permit 
applications, renewals, and modifications . 

None of the proposed amendments would make the state rules more stringent than comparable 
federal regulations or guidelines . Therefore, no further House Bill 521 analysis is required. 

The language of § 7 5-2-207, MCA, implies that it was not intended to apply to fee rules. The 
language requiring a finding that the proposed "state standard or requirements" protect public 
health or the environment, can mitigate harm to public health or the environment, and is achievable 
under current technology does not seem applicable to fee rules. Further, the statutory language 
requiring reference to peer-reviewed scientific studies in the record also is not applicable to fee rules. 

However, even if § 75-2-207, MCA, applies to the present rulemaking, the proposed amendments 
would not make the State's rules more stringent than comparable federal regulations or guidelines. 

(over, please) 



House Bill 521 and House Bill 311 Memo for 
Air Quality Fee Amendments Rulemaking 
ARM Notice No. 17-360 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

The federal Clean Air Act (FCAA) sets certain requirements for fees at 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(b) (3) (B), 
and implementing regulations restate these requirements at 40 C.P.R. § 70.9. These concern a fee 
per ton of pollutants emitted by a source required to have an operating permit. There are no 
application, modification, or renewal fee requirements for preconstruction or operating permits in 
the FCAA or implementing regulations. Therefore, the proposed amendments are not more 
stringent than a comparable federal regulation or guideline addressing the same circumstances. No 
further analysis is required. 

HB 311 REVIEW 
(Assessing Impact on Private Property) 

Sections 2-10-101 through 105, MCA, codify House Bill311, the Private Property Assessment Act, 
from the 199 5 legislative session, by requiring that, prior to taking an action that has taking or 
damaging implications for private real property, a state agency must prepare a taking or damaging 
impact assessment. Under Section 2-10-103(1), MCA, "action with taking or damaging implications" 
means: 

a proposed state agency administrative rule, policy, or permit condition or denial 
pertaining to land or water management or to some other environmental matter that 
if adopted and enforced would constitute a deprivation of private property in 
violation of the United States or M<;> ntana constitution. 

Section 2-10-104, MCA, requires the Montana Attorney General to develop guidelines, including a 
checklist, to assist agencies in determining whether an agency action has taking or damaging 
implications. 

I reviewed the guidelines and researched whether the adoptions of the proposed amendments to the 
fee rules would constitute a deprivation of real property in violation of the federal or state 
constitution. I determined that they would not, and have completed an Attorney General's Private 
Property Assessment Act Checklist, which is attached to this memo. No further House Bill 311 
assessment is required. 



PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT CHECKLIST 
(using form prepared by Montana Department of Justice, Jan. 2011} 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM 17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to definitions and air quality 
permit application fees MAR Notice 17-360 (publ. 6/26/14) 

DOES THE PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION HAVE TAKINGS IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE 
PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT? 

YES NO 

...J 1. Does the action pertain to land or water management or environmental regulation 

affecting private real property or water rights? 

2. Does the action result in either a permanent or indefinite physical occupation of 

private property? 

...J 3. Does the action deprive the owner of all economically beneficial use of the property? 

...J 4. Does the action require a property owner to dedicate a portion of property or to 

grant an easement? [If the answer is NO, skip questions 4a and 4b and continue with 

question 5.] 

4a. Is there a reasonable, specific connection between the government requirement and 

legitimate state interests? 

4b. Is the government requirement roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed 

use of the property? 

5. Does the action deny a fundamental attribute of ownership? 

6. Does the action have a severe impact on the value of the property? 

7. Does the action damage the property by causing some physical disturbance with 
respect to the property in excess of that sustained by the public generally? 
[If the answer is NO, do not answer questions 7a-7c.] 

7a . Is the impact of government action direct, peculiar, and significant? 

7b. Has government action resulted in the property becoming practically inaccessible, 
waterlogged, or flooded? 

7c. Has government action diminished property values by more than 30% and 
necessitated the physical taking of adjacent property or property across a public way 
from the property in question? 

Takings Checklist for Air Quality IBR Rulemaking, MAR Notice 17-361 Page 1 



Taking or damaging implications exist if YES is checked in response to question 1 and also to any one or 
more of the following questions: 2, 3, 5, 6, 7a, 7b, 7c; or if NO is checked in response to questions 4a or 

4b . 

If taking or damaging implications exist, the agency must comply with Mont. Code Ann . § 2-10-105, to 
include the preparation of a taking or damaging impact assessment. Normally, the preparation of an 
impact assessment will require consultation w ith agency legal staff. 

Takings Checklist for Air Quality IBR Rulemaking, MAR Not i~e 17-361 Page 2 



TO: 

FROM: 

"1-feafth:J environment, heafthy (Jeo(Jfe" 

Montana Department of 

ENVIRONMENT AIL QUAUTY Steve Bullock, Governor 
Tracy Stone-Manning, Director 

P. 0. Box 200901 • Helena, MT 59620-0901 • (406) 444-2544 • Website: www.deq.mt.gov 

Board of Environmental Review 

Charles Homer, Program Manager Air Resources Management Bureau 

SUBJECT: Montana Department of Environmental Quality's testimony concerning the 
amendment of ARM 17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to definitions and air quality 
permit application fees) in ARM Notice No. 17-360 (publ. 6/26/ 14) 

DATE: July 16,2014 

The Board of Environmental Review (board) initiated rulemaking on May 30,2014. In this 
rulemaking action, the board is following the provision in the Clean Air Act of Montana to adopt a 
schedule of fees for permit applications. Applicants for air quality permits for sources of air 
pollution are obligated to pay fees sufficient to cover the direct and indirect costs of developing and 
administering the permitting program according to the Clean Air Act of Montana. 

Currently, major sources of air pollution subject to the requirements of Montana's Title V and New 
Source Review - Prevention of Significant Deterioration (NSR-PSD) Montana Air Quality Pennit 
programs are required to submit permit application fees. The current permit application fees do not 
completely cover the costs incurred by the Montana Department of Environmental Quality 
(department) in processing these permit applications. The annual operating fees paid by other 
existing permitted facilities fund these costs instead. This creates a situation where existing 
businesses are subsidizing new businesses. 

The department evaluated the appropriate pennit application fee by estimating the average staff 
hours necessary for processing a major source Title V operating permit application for a relatively 
simple facility with few emitting units and comparing those hours with the costs currently recovered 
under the existing fee structure. For example, an applicant for a new major source Title V operating 
permit currently pays a permit application fee of $500. The application fee of $500 funds 
approximately 10 hours of staff time. This estimate uses $50 per hour (includes benefits and 
overhead) for the cost of staff time. Processing a new operating permit application for a major 
facility takes, at a minimum, 120 hours of staff time and could take several hundred hours for the 
most complex facilities. Using 120 hours of staff time as a baseline, the processing of an application 
for a new and relatively simple Title V operating permit application costs the department 
approximately $6000 in personal services. The proposed amendment to the Title V operating 
pennit application fee structure would increase the fee for processing such an application. The 
discrepancy between costs and fees collected is similar for other major sources applications. 

Enforcement Division • Permitting & Compliance Division • Planning, Prevention & Assistance Division • Remediation Division 



Under the proposed amendments, the application fees for minor and synthetic minor sources would 
remain unchanged. However, applicants seeking new or modified major source permits, i.e., major 
NSR-PSD and Title V operating permits, would see an application fee increase. The applicants 
seeking these major source permits are large facilities like refineries and power plants. 

The department has held several meetings with the Clean Air Act Advisory Council (CAAAC) over 
the past year to seek input on the proposed application fee increases. The fee increases being 
proposed have been adjusted in response to those discussions. 

The department would like to propose an amendment to the permit application fee rule as noticed. 
In proposing the amended application fee for modifications at sources subject to NSR-PSD to the 
board, the department unintentionally omitted the pet:!Jllt application fee for minor modifications. 

The department is proposing that the board retain the permit application fee for minor 
modifications at sources subject to NSR-PSD at its current level, $500. The department has 
prepared proposed language that would add the following phrase to (l)(a): (iii) for a modification 
other than a major modification - $500. A draft of this language is attached to my testimony. 

In developing the rule proposal, the department discussed an increase in the permit application fee 
modifications at sources subject to NSR-PSD with the CAAAC. It is the department's intent to 
propose an increase in this application fee consistent with the noticed increases in the other 
application fees at a future date. 

Although the increase in application fees may seem significant, the department believes the pennit 
application fees for the major sources may still not fully fund the amount of resources required for 
processing a complex and contentious application. The department supports the permit application 
fee increases in the Board's proposed rule revisions as set forth in the MAR notice dated June 26, 
2014. 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of 
ARM 17.8.501 and 17.8.504 . 
pertaining to definitions and air 
quality permit application fees PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 

1. On July 16, 2014, the undersigned presided over and conducted 

10 the public hearing held in Room 111 of the Metcalf Building, Helena, 

11 Montana, to take public comment on the above-captioned proposed 

12 amendments of existing rules . The amendments propose to amend ARM 

13 17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to definitions and air quality permit 

14 application fees. Under the proposed amendments, the application fees for 

15 minor and synthetic minor sources would remain unchanged. However, 

16 applicants seeking new or modified major NSR-PSD and Title V operating 

17 permits, would see an application fee increase in order to cover costs for the 

18 resources required for processing complex applications for, e.g., refineries and 

19 power plants. 

20 The Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment, Repeal and 

21 Adoption was contained in the 2014 Montana Administrative Register, Notice 

22 Number 17-360, published on June 26,2014, in Issue No. 12, at pages 1321 

23 through 1326. A copy of the notice is attached to this report. (Attachments 

24 are provided in the same order as they are referenced in this report.) 

25 2. The hearing began at 1:00 p.m. The hearing was transcribed by 

26 Susan Johnson with Lesofski Court Reporting & Video Conferencing of 

27 Helena, MT. 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

PAGE I 



3. The undersigned announced that persons at the hearing would be 

2 given an opportunity to submit their data, views, or arguments concerning the 

3 proposed action, either orally or in writing. At the hearing, the undersigned 

4 also identified and summarized the MAR notice, stated that copies of the 

5 MAR notice were available in the hearing room, and read the Notice of 

6 Function of Administrative Rule Review Committee as required by Mont. 

7 Code Ann. § 2-4-302(7)(a). The rulemaking interested persons list and the 

8 opportunity to have names placed on that list was addressed. Also referenced 

9 was the authority to make the proposed rule amendments as well as the 

10 opportunity to present matters at the hearing or in writing, as stated in the 

11 MAR notice. 

12 SUMMARY OF HEARING 

13 4. Mr. Charles Homer, Supervisor of the Technical Support Section 

14 of the Air Resources Management Bureau with the Montana Department of 

15 Environmental Quality presented written and oral testimony explaining the 

16 rule amendments. He recommended that the rule amendments be adopted as 

17 proposed in the MAR notice. Mr. Homer's comments are attached. 

18 5. There were no members of the public who presented testimony at 

19 the hearing. 

20 SUMMARY OF WRITTEN MATERIALS 

21 

22 

6. 

7. 

No written comments were timely received. 

The Department also submitted a memorandum from DEQ staff 

23 attorney, Mr. Norman J. Mullen with HB 521 and HB 311 reviews of the 

24 proposed amendments together with a Private Property Assessment Act 

25 Checklist. Mr. Mullen's memorandum is attached to this report. 

26 8. Mr. Mullen concluded that HB 521 probably does not apply to 

27 the proposed amendments and even if it did, there are no federal regulations or 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

PACE2 



guidelines that would make the state rules more stringent than comparable 

2 federal regulations or guidelines. . 

3 9. With respect to HB 311 (the Private Property Assessment Act, 

4 Mont. Code Ann. §§ 2-10-101 through 1 05), the State is required to assess the 

5 taking or damaging implications of a proposed amendments affecting the use 

6 of private real property. This rulemaking affects the use of private real 

7 property. A Private Property Assessment Act Checklist was prepared, which 

8 shows that the proposed amendments do not have taking or damaging 

9 implications. Therefore, no further assessment is required. 

10 10. No further written comments have been received . The period to 

1 I submit comments ended at 5 p.m. on July 24, 2014. 

12 PRESIDING OFFICER COMMENTS 

13 11 . The Board and the Department have jurisdiction to adopt and 

14 amend, the amendments and rules referenced in this rulemaking pursuant to 

15 Mont. Code Ann §§ 75-2-111 and 75-2-220, 75,..2-234. 

16 12. House Bill 521 (1995), codified in the Air Quality Act at Mont. 

17 Code Ann. §§ 75-2-111 and 75-2-207 generally provides that the Board may 

18 not adopt a rule that is more stringent than comparable federal regulations or 

19 guidelines, unless the Board makes written findings after public hearing and 

20 comment. The proposed amendments are not comparable to federal regulation 

21 or guidelines. Therefore written findings are not necessary. 

22 13. House Bill 311 (1995), the Private Property Assessment Act, 

23 codified as Mont. Code Ann.§ 2-10-101 through -105, provides that a state 

24 agency must complete a review and impact assessment prior to taking an 

25 action with taking or damaging implications. The proposed amendments 

26 affect real property. A Private Property Assessment Act Checklist was 

27 prepared in this matter. The proposed amendments do not have direct taking 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

PAGE3 



or damaging implications for property. Therefore, no further HB 3 II 

2 assessment is necessary. 

3 14. The procedures required by the Montana Administrative 

4 Procedure Act, including public notice, hearing, and comment, have been 

5 followed. 

6 15. The Board may adopt the proposed rule amendments or reject 

7 them, or adopt the rule amendments and new rule with revisions not exceeding 

8 the scope of the public notice. 

9 16. Under Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-305(7), for the rulemaking process 

10 to be valid, the Board must publish a notice of adoption within six months of 

II the date the Board published the notice of proposed rulemaking in the 

12 Montana Administrative Register, or December 26,2014 . 

13 Dated this ~ay of September, 2014. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

J>AGE4 



-1-

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to 
definitions and air quality permit 
application fees 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT 

(AIR QUALITY) 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On June 26, 2014, the Board of Environmental Review published MAR 
Notice No. 17-360 regarding a notice of public hearing on the proposed amendment 
of the above-stated rules at page 1321 , 2014 Montana Administrative Register, 
Issue Number 12. 

2. The board has amended ARM 17.8.501 exactly as proposed and has 
amended ARM 17.8.504 as proposed , but with the following changes, stricken 
matter interl ined , new matter underlined : 

17.8.504 AIR QUALITY PERMIT APPLICATION FEES (1) An applicant 
submitting a Montana air quality permit application required in ARM Title 17, chapter 
8, subchapters 7, 8, 9, or 10, shall submit the appropriate application fee as follows : 

(a) for a facility subject to ARM Title 17, chapter 8, subchapters 7 and 8, 9, or 
10: 

(i) for a new major stationary source- $15,000; 
(ii) for a major modification - $3 ,500; 
(i ii ) for a modification other than a major modification- $500; 
(b) through (5) remain as proposed . 

3. The following comment was received and appears with the board's 
response: 

COMMENT NO. 1: The amendments to ARM 17.8.504(1)(a) unintentionally 
delete the fee for minor modifications. This fee should be restored at the current 
level. 

RESPONSE: The board agrees . As clearly reflected in the statement of 
reasonable necessity, the only substantive change to be made in (1 )(a) is an 
increase in the fee for major permit modifications. Elimination of the fee for minor 
modifications is not indicated in the statement of reasonable necessity. 
Furthermore , even if it had intended to eliminate the fee for minor modifications, the 
board would have authority to choose not to adopt that amendment, and retention of 
the fee is necessary to adequately fund the air quality program. The board has 
therefore retained the existing $500 fee for minor modifications. 

Montana Administrative Register 17-360 



-2-

4. No other comments or testimony were received . 

Reviewed by: 

JOHN F. NORTH 
Rule Reviewer 

BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

By: -------------------------
ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, ________ , 2014. 

Montana Administrative Register 17-360 



BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
AGENDA ITEM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULE ADOPTION 

Agenda Item # III.A.2. 

Agenda Item Summary: The department requests that the board act on MAR Notice 
17-361 , published on June 26, 2014, to amend certain air quality rule provisions in ARM 
Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 8 for particulate matter less than 2.5 micrometers in 
diameter (PM-2 .5) from sources subject to major source permit rules. 

List of Affected Board Rules: This rulemaking would amend ARM 17.8.818 and 
17.8.820. 

Affected Parties Summary: The proposed rule amendments would affect all new and 
modified major stationary sources regulated by the department under the New Source 
Review- Prevention of Significant Deterioration (NSR-PSD) air quality rules. 

Scope of Proposed Proceeding: The board is considering final action on adoption of 
amendments to the above-referenced rules. The amendments were proposed in 
Montana Administrative Register (MAR) notice No. 17-361 . The board did not receive 
any substantive comments on the proposed rulemaking notice, and is considering 
adopting the amendments as proposed. See Draft Notice of Amendment. 

Background: On October 20 , 2010 , the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
published a final rule establishing NSR-PSD increments, significant impact levels (Sils) 
and significant monitoring concentration (SMC) for PM-2 .5 (75 Fed. Reg . 64864). The 
Slls are screening tools that have been used in NSR-PSD permitting to demonstrate 
that the proposed source's allowable emissions will not cause or contribute to a violation 
of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) ; such a demonstration by an 
applicant is required to obtain a permit from the department. The SMC has been used 
to exempt sources from a requirement in the Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 
7475(e)(2)) , that they collect monitoring data for up to one year before submitting a 
permit application to help determine existing ambient air quality. 

The board adopted these federal preconstruction review requirements into ARM 
Title 17, chapter 8, subchapter 8, on September 23, 2011 . 

The federal regulations concerning Slls and SMCs were challenged in a federal 
lawsuit as not complying with the federal Clean Air Act, and a federal appeals court 
vacated (overturned) portions of the regulations in 2013. Sierra Club v. EPA, 705 F.3d 
458, 403 U.S. App . D.C. 318 (2013) . EPA responded by adopting new regulations in 
2013 that reduced the SMC for PM-2.5 to 0 ug/m3

, indicating that there is no air quality 
impact level below which a reviewing authority has the discretion to exempt a source 
from the PM-2.5 monitoring requirements . In the same rulemaking, EPA also eliminated 
the Slls for PM-2 .5, stating that it will initiate new rulemaking to address them in the 
future . Prevention of Significant Deterioration for PM-2.5- Slls and SMCs: Removal of 
Vacated Elements, Final Rule , 78 Fed .Reg . 73698 (December 9, 2013). 

1 



The department is recommending that the board amend ARM 17.8.818 and ARM 
17.8.820 to remove the provisions with the same requirements that were eliminated 
from the EPA regulations just discussed. This would maintain consistency of Montana's 
rules with federal regulations and ensure Montana's ongoing NSR-PSD program 
primacy and authority. 

Hearing Information: A public hearing was held on July 16, 2014. The Hearing 
Examiner's Report is attached . 

Board Options: The board may: 

1. Adopt the proposed amendments as set forth in the attached Notice of 
Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment; 

2. Adopt the proposed amendments with revisions that the board finds are 
appropriate and that are consistent with the scope of the Notice of Public 
Hearing on Proposed Amendment and the record in this proceeding ; or 

3. Decide to not adopt the amendments. 

DEQ Recommendation: The department recommends the board adopt the rules as 
proposed in the Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment. 

Enclosures: 

1. Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment 
2. HB 521 and 311 Analyses 
3. Hearing Examiner's Report 
4 . Draft Notice of Amendment 

2 



-1327-

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM ) 
17.8.818 and 17.8.820 pertaining to ) 
review of major stationary sources and ) 
major modifications--source applicability ) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

(AIR QUALITY) 
and exemptions and source impact ) 
analysis ) 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On July 16, 2014 , at 2:00p.m., or at the conclusion of the hearing for MAR 
Notice No. 17-360 , the Board of Environmental Review will hold a public hearing in 
Room 111 , Metcalf Building , 1520 East Sixth Avenue , Helena, Montana, to consider 
the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules . 

2. The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation , contact Elois 
Johnson, Paralegal , no later than 5:00p.m., July 7, 2014 , to advise us of the nature 
of the accommodation that you need . Please contact Elois Johnson at Department 
of Environmental Quality , P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901 ; phone 
(406) 444-2630 ; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 

3. The rules proposed to be amended provide as follows , stricken matter 
interlined , new matter underlined : 

17.8.818 REVIEW OF MAJOR STATIONARY SOURCES AND MAJOR 
MODIFICATIONS--SOURCE APPLICABILITY AND EXEMPTIONS (1) through (6) 
remain the same. 

(7) The department may exempt a proposed major stationary source or major 
modification from the requirements of ARM 17.8.822, with respect to monitoring for a 
particular pollutant, if: 

(a) the emissions increase of the pollutant from a new stationary source or 
the net emissions increase of the pollutant from a modification would cause, in any 
area, air quality impacts less than the following amounts: 

(i) and (ii) remain the same. 
(iii) PM-2 .5: 4 [4 stricken].Q 1Jg/m3

, 24-hour average; 
(iv) through (c) remain the same. 

AUTH: 75-2-111 , 75-2-203 , MCA 
IMP: 75-2-202 , 75-2-203, 75-2-204 , MCA 

17.8.820 SOURCE IMPACT ANALYSIS (1) remains the same. 
(2) For purposes of PM 2.5, the demonstration required in (1) is made if the 

emissions increase from the new stationary source alone or from the modification 

MAR Notice No. 17-361 12-6/26/14 



r~------~--------------- -------------------------- ---------

-1328-

AUTH : 75-2-111 , 75-2-203, MCA 
IMP: 75-2-202, 75-2-203, 75-2-204, MCA 

REASON: On December 17, 2010, the Sierra Club petitioned the United 
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit (Court) to review the 
2010 PM-2 .5 significant impact levels (Sils) and significant monitoring concentration 
(SMC) final rule. 

On January 22 , 2013, the Court granted a request from the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to vacate and remand to the EPA portions 
of the New Source Review-Prevention of Significant Deterioration (NSR-PSD) 
regulations (40 CFR 51.166(k)(2) and 52.21 (k)(2)) establishing the Slls for PM-2.5 
so that the EPA could reconcile the inconsistency between the regulatory text and 
certain statements in the preamble to the 2010 final rule . The Court further vacated 
the portions of the NSR-PSD regulations (40 CFR 51 .166(i)(5)(i)(c) and 
52 .21 (i)(5)(i)(c)) establishing a PM-2 .5 SMC, finding that the EPA lacked legal 
authority to adopt and use the PM-2 .5 SMC to exempt permit applicants from the 
statutory requirement to compile and submit ambient monitoring data . Rather than 
eliminating , the EPA revised the SMC for PM-2.5 from four micrograms per cubic 
meter (ug/m3

) to 0 ug/m3
, indicating that there is no air quality impact level below 

which a reviewing authority has the discretion to exempt a source from the PM-2 .5 
monitoring requirements . 

The board is proposing to amend ARM 17.8.818(7)(a)(iii), which concerns the 
SMC for particulate matter with a diameter of less than 2.5 microns (PM-2.5), from 
four ug/m3 to 0 ug/m3

. In Sierra Club v. EPA, 705 F.3d 458, 403 U.S. App. D.C. 318 
(2013), the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit (Court) 
vacated the portions of the NSR-PSD regulations establishing a PM-2 .5 SMC, 
finding that the EPA lacked legal authority to adopt and use the PM-2 .5 SMC to 
exempt permit applicants from a statutory requirement to compile and submit 
ambient monitoring data . In response to that decision , EPA adopted a final rule that 
did not eliminate SMC completely, but rather revised the SMC for PM-2 .5 from 4 
ug/m3 to 0 ug/m3

, indicating that there is no air quality impact level below which a 
reviewing authority has the discretion to exempt a source from the PM-2.5 
monitoring requirements. See Prevention of Significant Deterioration for PM-2 .5-
Sils and SMCs: Removal of Vacated Elements, Final Rule , 78 Fed .Reg. 73698 
(December 9, 2013). The proposed amendment would make the board's rule 
consistent with and as stringent as the EPA regulation. This would ensure 
Montana's ongoing NSR-PSD program primacy and authority. 

The board is proposing to delete ARM 17.8.820(2) , which includes a table . 
Section (2) concerns PM-2.5 Slls, which are screening tools that have been applied 
in NSR-PSD permitting to demonstrate that the proposed source's allowable 

12-6/26/14 MAR Notice No. 17-361 



-1329-

emissions will not cause or contribute to a violation of the National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (NAAQS) or increment. In the Sierra Club v. EPA case cited 
above, the Court granted a request from EPA to vacate and remand to EPA portions 
of the NSR-PSD regulations establishing the Slls for PM-2 .5 so that the EPA could 
reconcile the inconsistency between the regulatory text and certain statements in the 
preamble to the 2010 final rule . To accomplish this , EPA adopted the final rule cited 
above. The proposed deletion would make the board's rule consistent with and as 
stringent as the EPA regulation . This would ensure Montana's ongoing NSR-PSD 
program primacy and authority. 

4. Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments, either 
orally or in writing , at the hearing . Written data , views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 
E. Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901; faxed to (406) 
444-4386; ore-mailed to ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m ., July 24, 2014. 
To be guaranteed consideration , mailed comments must be postmarked on or 
before that date. 

5. The attorney for the board , or another attorney for the Agency Legal 
Services Bureau , has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing . 

6. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e
mail , and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 
person wishes to receive notices regarding : air quality; hazardous waste/waste oil ; 
asbestos control ; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification; solid 
waste; junk vehicles; infectious waste ; public water supply; public sewage systems 
regulation ; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation ; major facility siting ; opencut mine 
reclamation ; strip mine reclamation ; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans; water 
quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks ; MEPA; or general 
procedural ru les other than MEPA. Notices will be sent by e-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson, Paralegal , Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 E. Sixth 
Ave. , P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901 , faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board . 

7. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302 , MCA, do not apply. 

MAR Notice No. 17-361 12-6/26/14 



-1330-

8. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111 , MCA, the board has 
determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rules will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 

Reviewed by: 

Is! John F. North 
JOHN F. NORTH 
Rule Reviewer 

BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

BY: /s/ Robin Shropshire 
ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, June 16, 2014 . 

12-6/26/14 MAR Notice No. 17-361 



Montana Department of 

......... ~~ ENvmoNMENTAL ALITY MEMo 
TO: 
FROM: 
SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Board of Environmental Review () 
Norman]. Mullen, Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Staff Attorney 1),/ '~ 
House Bill521 (stringency) and House Bill311 (takings) review of rulemaking 
concerning the amendment of ARM 17.8.818 and 17.8.820 pertaining to review of 
major stationary sources and major modifications--source applicability and 
exemptions and source impact analysis 17-361 (publ. 6/ 26/ 14) 
July 15,2014 

HB 521 REVIEW 
(Comparing Stringency of State and Local Rules 

to Any Comparable Federal Regulations or Guidelines) 

Sections 75-2-111 and 207, MCA, codify the air quality provisions of House Bill521, from the 1995 
legislative session, by requiring that the Board of Environmental Review (Board), prior to adopting a 
rule to implement the Clean Air Act of Montana that is more stringent than a comparable federal 
regulation or guideline that addresses the same circumstances, make certain written findings after a 
public hearing and receiving public comment. 

In this proceeding, the Board is proposing to amend ARM 17.8.818 and 17.8.820. These rules 
address New Source Review-Prevention of Significant Deterioration (NSR-PSD) . The amendment 
to ARM 17.8.818 would change the significant monitoring concentration (SMC) for particulate 
matter smaller than 2.5 microns from four micrograms per cubic meter (ug/ m 3

) to zero ug/ m3
. The 

amendment to ARM 17.8.820 would remove significant impact levels (SILs) for the same pollutant. 
These amendments are being proposed because the federal Environmental Protection Agency was 
required to make similar amendments to its regulations by a federal court case, Sierra Club v. EPA, 
705 F.3d 458, 403 U.S. App. D.C. 318 (2013), and then EPA did amended its regulations 
accordingly. See Prevention of Signifimnt Deterioration for PM-2.5--SIL and SMCs: Removal of Vacated 
Elements, Final Rule, 78 Fed.Reg. 73698 (December 9, 2013). 

None of the proposed amendments would make the state rules more stringent than comparable 
federal regulations or guidelines. Indeed, the amendments are being proposed to make the state 
rules consistent with, and equally as stringent as, the comparable federal regulations. Therefore, no 
further House Bill 521 analysis is required. 

(over, please) 



House Bill 521 and House Bill 311 Memo for 
SMC and SILs Amendments Rulemaking 
ARM Notice No. 17-361 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

HB 311 REVIEW 
(Assessing Impact on Private Property) 

Sections 2-10-101 through 105, MCA, codify House Bill311, the Private Property Assessment Act, 
from the 1995 legislative session, by requiring that, prior to taking an action that has taking or 
damaging implications for private real property, a state agency must prepare a taking or damaging 
impact assessment. Under Section 2-10-103 (1), MCA, "action with taking or damaging implications" 
means: 

a proposed state agency administrative rule, policy, or permit condition or denial 
pertaining to land or water management or to some other environmental matter that 
if adopted and enforced would constitute a deprivation of private property in 
violation of the United States or Montana constitution. 

Section 2-10-104, MCA, requires the Montana Attorney General to develop guidelines, including a 
checklist, to assist agencies in determining whether an agency action has taking or damaging 
implications. 

I reviewed the guidelines and researched whether the proposed amendments would constitute a 
deprivation of real property in violation of the federal or state constitution. I determined that they 
would not, and have completed an Attorney General's Private Property Assessment Act Checklist, 
which is attached to this memo. No further House Bill311 assessment is required. 



PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT CHECKLIST 
{using form prepared by Montana Department of Justice, Jan. 2011) 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM 17.8.818 and 17.8.820 pertaining to review of major stationary 
sources and major modifications--source applicability and exemptions and source impact analysis, MAR 
Notice 17-361 (publ. 6/26/14) 

DOES THE PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION HAVE TAKINGS IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE 
PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT? 

YES NO 

...J 1. Does the action pertain to land or water management or environmental regulation 

affecting private real property or water rights? 

2. Does the action result in either a permanent or indefinite physical occupation of 

private property? 

...J 3. Does the action deprive the owner of all economically beneficial use of the property? 

...J 4. Does the action require a property owner to dedicate a portion of property or to 

grant an easement? [If the answer is NO, skip questions 4a and 4b and continue with 

question 5.] 

4a . Is there a reasonable, specific connection between the government requirement and 

legitimate state interests? 

4b. Is the government requirement roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed 

use of the property? 

5. Does the action deny a fundamental attribute of ownership? 

6. Does the action have a severe impact on the value of the property? 

7. Does the action damage the property by causing some physical disturbance with 
respect to the property in excess of that sustained by the public generally? 
[If the answer is NO, do not answer questions 7a-7c.] 

7a. Is the impact of government action direct, peculiar, and significant? 

7b. Has government action resulted in the property becoming practically inaccessible, 
waterlogged, or flooded? 

7c. Has government action diminished property values by more than 30% and 
necessitated the physical taking of adjacent property or property across a public way 
from the property in question? 

Takings Checklist for Air Quality IBR Rulemaking, MAR Notice 17-361 Page 1 



Taking or damaging implications exist if YES is checked in response to question 1 and also to any one or 
more of the following questions: 2, 3, 5, 6, 7a, 7b, 7c; or if NO is checked in response to questions 4a or 

4b. 

If taking or damaging implications exist, the agency must comply with Mont. Code Ann . § 2-10-105, to 
include the preparation of a taking or damaging impact assessment. Normally, the preparation of an 

impact assessment will require consultation with agency legal staff. 

Takings Checklist for Air Quality IBR Rulemaking, MAR Notice 17-361 Page 2 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of 
ARM 17.8.818 and 17.8.820 
pertaining to review of major 
stationary sources and maJor 
modifications--source applicability 
and exemptions and source impact 
analysis 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 

1. On July 16, 2014, the undersigned presided over and conducted 

the public hearing held in Room 111 of the Metcalf Building, Helena, 

Montana, to take public comment on the above-captioned proposed 

amendments of existing rules. The amendments propose to amend ARM 

17.8.818 and 17.8.820 by removing a provision from Montana's air quality 

major source permitting program allowing the use of significant impact levels, 

and by modifying the existing significant monitoring concentration 

requirement for particulate matter Jess than 2.5 micrometers in diameter, 

refetTed to as PM-2.5. 

The Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment, Repeal and 

Adoption was contained in the 2014 Montana Administrative Register, Notice 

Number 17-361, published on June 26, 2014, in Issue No. 12, at pages 1327 

through 1330. A copy of the notice is attached to this report. (Attachments 

are provided in the same order as they are referenced in this report.) 

2. The hearing began at 2:00p.m. The hearing was transcribed by 

Susan Johnson with Lesofski Court Repmiing & Video Conferencing of 

Helena, MT. 

3. The undersigned announced that persons at the hearing would be 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

PAGE I 



given an opportunity to submit their data, views, or arguments concerning the 

2 proposed action, either orally or in writing. At the hearing, the undersigned 

3 also identified and summarized the MAR notice, stated that copies of the 

4 MAR notice were available in the hearing room, and read the Notice of 

5 Function of Administrative Rule Review Committee as required by Mont. 

6 Code Ann . § 2-4-302(7)(a). The rulemaking interested persons list and the 

7 oppmiunity to have names placed on that list was addressed. Also referenced 

8 was the authority to make the proposed rule amendments as well as the 

9 opportunity to present matters at the hearing or in writing, as stated in the 

10 MAR notice. 

11 SUMMARY OF HEARING 

12 4. Ms . Liz Ulrich, Air Quality Planner with the Air Resources 

13 Management Bureau with the Montana Department of Environmental Quality, 

14 presented written and oral testimony explaining the rule amendments. He 

15 recommended that the rule amendments be adopted as proposed in the MAR 

16 notice. Ms. Ulrich's comments are attached. 

17 5. There were no members of the public who presented testimony at 

18 the hearing. 

19 SUMMARY OF WRITTEN MATERIALS 

20 6. Prior to the hearing, written comments were timely received from 

21 Theresa Blazicevich dated June 26,2014. Ms. Blazicevich ' s comments are 

22 attached to this report. Ms. Blazicevich commented that she believes open 

23 burning to be a significant contributor of particulate matter pollution in Ravalli 

24 County, and that she would like more extensive open burning regulation by the 

25 Department of Environmental Quality. This comment is addressed in the 

26 Notice of Amendment prepared by the Department. 

27 7. The Department also submitted a memorandum from DEQ staff 

PRESIDING OFFICER REPORT 

PAGE 2 



attorney, Mr. Norman J. Mullen with HB 521 and HB 311 reviews of the 

2 proposed amendments together with a Private Property Assessment Act 

3 Checklist. Mr. Mullen's memorandum is attached to this report. 

4 8. Mr. Mullen concluded that HB 521 probably does not apply to 

5 the proposed amendments and even if it did, there are no federal regulations or 

6 guidelines that would make the state rules more stringent than comparable 

7 federal regulations or guidelines. Rather, these amendments are being 

8 proposed to make the state rules consistent with, and thus as stringent as, 

9 federal regulations. 

10 9. With respect to HB 311 (the Private Property Assessment Act, 

11 Mont. Code Ann.§§ 2-10-101 through 105), the State is required to assess the 

12 taking or damaging implications of a proposed amendments affecting the use 

13 of private real property. This rulemaking affects the use of private real 

14 property. A Private Property Assessment Act Checklist was prepared, which 

15 shows that the proposed amendments do not have taking or damaging 

16 implications. Therefore, no further assessment is required. 

17 10. No further written comments have been received. The period to 

18 submit comments ended at 5 p.m. on July 24,2014. 

19 PRESIDING OFFICER COMMENTS 

20 11. The Board and the Department have jurisdiction to adopt and 

21 amend, the amendments and rules referenced in this rulemaking pursuant to 

22 Mont. Code Ann §§ 75-2-111 and 75-2-220, 75-2-234. 

23 12. House Bill 521 (1995), codified in the Air Quality Act at Mont. 

24 Code Ann. §§ 75-2-111 and 75-2-207 generally provides that the Board may 

25 not adopt a rule that is more stringent than comparable federal regulations or 

26 guidelines, unless the Board makes written findings after public hearing and 

27 

PRESIDING OFFIC ER REPORT 

PAGE3 



comment. The proposed amendments are not comparable to federal regulation 

2 or guidelines. Therefore written findings are not necessary. 

3 13. House Bill 311 (1995), the Private Property Assessment Act, 

4 codified as Mont. Code Ann. § 2-10-101 through -105, provides that a state 

5 agency must complete a review and impact assessment prior to taking an 

6 action with taking or damaging implications. The proposed amendments 

7 affect real property. A Private Property Assessment Act Checklist was 

8 prepared in this matter. The proposed amendments do not have direct taking 

9 or damaging implications for property . Therefore, no further HB 31 I 

10 assessment is necessary. 

11 14. The procedures required by the Montana Administrative 

12 Procedure Act, including public notice, hearing, and comment, have been 

13 followed. 

14 15. The Board may adopt the proposed rule amendments or reject 

15 them, or adopt the rule amendments and new rule with revisions not exceeding 

16 the scope of the public notice. 

17 16. Under Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-305(7), for the rulemaking process 

18 

19 

20 

2t 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

to be valid, the Board must publish a notice of adoption within six months of 

the date the Board published the notice of proposed rulemaking in the 

Montana Administrative Register, or by December 26, 2014. 

Dated this~ay of September, 2014. 

~~~. 
Presiding Officer 

PRESfl)ING OFFICER REPORT 

PAGE 4 



-1-

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.8.501 and 17.8.504 pertaining to 
definitions and air quality permit 
application fees 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT 

(AIR QUALITY) 

1. On June 26 , 2014 , the Board of Environmental Review published MAR 
Notice No. 17-361 regarding a notice of public hearing on the proposed amendment 
of the above-stated rule at page 1321 , 2014 Montana Administrative Register, Issue 
Number 12. 

2. The board has amended the rules exactly as proposed . 

3. The following comment was received and appears with the board 's 
response: 

COMMENT NO. 1: Commenter believes open burning is a significant 
contributor of particulate matter pollution in Ravalli County and would like more 
extensive open burning regulation by the Department of Environmental Quality. 

RESPONSE: The comment concerns matters beyond the scope of this 
rulemaking. No change is being maqe to the rules in response to this comment. 

4 . No other comments or testimony were received'. 

Reviewed by: BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

By: -----------------------------
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, , 2014. 

Montana Administrative Register 17-361 



 
 
TO:  Ben Reed, Hearing Examiner 
  Board of Environmental Review 
 
FROM: Joyce Wittenberg, Board Secretary 

Board of Environmental Review 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT  59620-0901 

 
DATE:  August 8, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Board of Environmental Review Case No. BER 2014-05 WQ 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 

OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY’S APPEAL OF 
OUTFALL 006 ARSENIC LIMITS IN 
MONTANA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE 
ELIMINATION SYSTEM PERMIT NO. 
MT0000256, BILLINGS, YELLOWSTONE 
COUNTY, MT. 

 
 
 
Case No. BER 2014-05 WQ 

 

 
The BER has received the attached request for hearing. Also attached is DEQ’s administrative 
document(s) relating to this request. 
 
Please serve copies of pleadings and correspondence on me and on the following DEQ 
representatives in this case. 
 
Kurt Moser 
Legal Counsel 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT  59620-0901 
 

Jon Kenning, Bureau Chief 
Water Protection Bureau 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT  59620-0901 

 
Attachments 
c: Catherine A. Laughner, Attorney for Appellant 































































































































































































Montana Department of 

........._~~ ENVIRONMENTAL 

TO: Benjamin Reed, Hearing Examiner 
Board of Environmental Review 

FROM: Joyce Wittenberg, Board Se~ 
Board of Environmental Re;i~O 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 

DATE: September 2, 2014 

SUBJECT: Board of Environmental Review case, Case No. BER 2014-07 OC 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

Malo 

VIOLATIONS OF THE OPENCUT MINING Case No. BER 2014-07 OC 
ACT BY BAY MATERIALS, LLC AT 
NORMONT FARMS PIT, TOOLE COUNTY, 
MONTANA (OPENCUT NO. 1872; FID 
2325; DOCKET NO. OC-14-03) 

TITLE 

BER has received the attached request for hearing. Also attached is DEQ's administrative 
document relating to this request (Enforcement Case FID 2325, Docket No. OC-14-03). 

Please serve copies of pleadings and correspondence on me and on the following DEQ 
representatives in this case. 

Dana David 
Legal Counsel 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 

Attachments 

John Arrigo, Administrator 
Enforcement Division 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 



BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

2 OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

3 IN THE MATTER OF: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
VIOLATIONS OF THE OPEN CUT 

4 MINING ACT BY BAY MATERIALS, 
LLC ATNORMONT FARMS PIT, 

AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND 

PENALTY ORDER 
5 TOOLE COUNTY, MONTANA 

(OPEN CUT NO. 1872; FID 2325) 
6 

Docket No. OC-14-03 

7 I. NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

8 Pursuant to the authority of Section 82-4-441, Montana Code Annotated (MCA), the 

9 Department of Environmental Quality (Department) hereby gives notice to Bay Materials, LLC 

10 (Bay) ofthe following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law with respect to violations ofthe 

11 Opencut Mining Act (the Act), Title 82, chapter 4, part 4, MCA, and the Administrative Rules of 

12 Montana (ARM) adopted thereunder, Title 17, chapter 24, sub-chapter 2. 

13 II. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

14 The Department makes the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law: 

15 1. The Department is an agency of the executive branch of government of the State 

16 of Montana, created and existing under the authority of Section 2-15-3501, MCA. 

17 2. The Department administers the Act. 

18 3. The Department is authorized under Section 82-4-441, MCA, to issue this Notice 

19 of Violation and Administrative Compliance and Penalty Order (Order) to Bay to address alleged 

20 violations of the Act, the administrative rules implementing the Act, to obtain corrective actions, 

21 and to assess penalties for the alleged violations. 

22 4. Bay is a "person" as defined in Section 82-4-403(10), MCA. 

23 5. The Department issued Bay a permit to operate an opencut mine at the Norment Farms 

24 Pit (Site) in Toole County, Montana. Bay operates or has operated the Norment Farms Pit opencut 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 1 



1 mine under Permit No. 1872 (Permit). Bay, therefore, is an "operator" within the meaning of Section 

2 82-4-403(8), MCA, and subject to the requirements of the Act and the rules adopted thereunder. 

3 6. An operator may amend a permit by submitting an amendment application to the 

4 Department. If the amendment application is acceptable, the Department shall issue an 

5 amendment to the original permit. See Section 82-4-432(11), MCA. 

6 7. ARM 17.24.225 requires an operator to comply with the provisions of its permit, 

7 which includes an approved plan of operation (Plan), and the Act. 

8 8. Once the Plan is accepted by the Department, it becomes part of the permit. See 

9 Section 82-4-434(2), MCA. 

10 9. The Department approved Bay's application to amend the Permit and issued 

11 Amendment #1 (Amendment) on July 6, 2012. The Amendment was approved for Bay to 

12 conduct opencut operations on 42.3 acres, of which 32.5 acres were bonded. The Amendment 

13 states "The Operator must provide revised information and an updated bond approved by the 

14 DEQ before commencing Opencut operations on any part of the 9.8 acres of "Non-Bonded" area 

15 included in the permit." See No. 11 ofthe Amendment. 

16 10. The Permit and Amendment are collectively referred to herein as the "Permit." 

17 11. On March 14, 2014, Bay submitted a Request to Commence Operations in a 

18 Non-Bonded Area (Request) and a revised bond to the Department. 

19 12. On April 16, 2014, the Department conducted a compliance inspection at the Site 

20 (April Inspection). 

21 13. On Apri124, 2014, the Department sent Bay a violation letter (April Violation 

22 Letter) for conducting opencut operations in violation of the Act. The Department provided Bay 

23 with a copy of the April Inspection report. 

24 II 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 2 



1 14. On May 28, 2014, Bay submitted to the Department an application to amend the 

2 Perm.it (2"d Amendment) to increase the total permitted acreage at the Site from 42.7 [sic] acres 

3 to 63.7 [sic] acres, of which 51.4 [sic] acres were bonded. 

4 15. On June 2, 2014, the Department sent a letter informing Bay that the 2"d 

5 Amendment application was incomplete and the Department was unable to process the 

6 application until Bay submitted the required information listed in the Department's letter. 

7 16. On July 18, 2014, Bay resubmitted the 2"d Amendment application to the 

8 Department 

9 17. On July 22, 2014, the Department sent a letter informing Bay that the 2"d 

1 0 Amendment application was complete and stated that, "In accordance with the Act and its 

11 implementing rules, the statutory time period for the Program to identify deficiencies in the 

12 application is 45 days from the date of this notice. If the Program notes any deficiencies, you will 

13 receive a detailed letter identifying the deficiencies you must respond to before further 

14 processing of the application can occur. If no deficiencies are identified you will receive the 

15 approved permit." 

16 18. On July 23, 2014, the Department conducted a site inspection (July Inspection) in 

17 response to Bay's 2"d Amendment application. 

18 19. On August 12, 2014, the Department provided Bay with a copy of the July 

19 Inspection report via email. The July Inspection report noted that "Due to active operations that 

20 were occurring at the site and for safety reasons, only the south side of the currently permitted 

21 area was inspected along with the proposed amendment for this site inspection (7/23/14). 

22 Therefore, many of the violations identified during the April 16, 2014, site inspection were only 

23 verified in the southern portion of the permitted area and not verified in any other portions of the 

24 permitted area during this site inspection." 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 3 



20. As of August 15,2014, the Depattment has not approved the Request or the 2nd 

2 Amendment. 

3 Violation 1: Conducting opencut operations in non-bonded area 

4 21. The Permit and specifically the Plan requires Bay, prior to commencing opencut 

5 operations in areas permitted as undisturbed "until bonded," to submit a Request form and post 

6 additional bond on the nonbonded and undisturbed area. No opencut operations, including 

7 equipment parking, or stockpiling can begin on acreage described on the Request until the form, 

8 bond, and map are approved by the Department. See Section F2. of the Plan. 

9 22. The Request that was signed and submitted by Brian Midboe, the owner of Bay 

10 Materials, on March 14, 2014, prominently displays notification language that provides in 

11 pertinent part, that operations "cannot commence until DEQ's acceptance of the revised bond ... " 

12 23. On March 24,2014, the Department sent a letter acknowledging receipt of Bay's 

13 Request and informed Bay that the Request would be reviewed by the Program in accordance 

14 with the Opencut Mining Act (Act) and its implementing rules. The Department's letter displays 

15 notification language in bolded and large font that provides: "No opencut operations can be 

16 conducted in the currently non-bonded area at this site until the Program finishes reviewing your 

17 request, determines it is acceptable, and you receive notification of the approved request to 

18 change the non-bonded area at the site." 

19 24. As part of its review ofthe Request, the Department obtained and reviewed an 

20 aerial photograph ofthe Site dated July 19,2013, and observed that opencut operations had 

21 apparently commenced in the non-bonded area before Bay submitted the Request dated March 

22 14,2014. Based on the information contained in the July 19,2013 aerial photograph, the 

23 Department conducted the April 2014 Compliance Inspection. During the April 20 14 

24 Compliance Inspection, the Department observed that Bay had conducted opencut operations on 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 4 



approximately 6.4 acres outside the bonded area of the Site. The April Inspection report 

2 contained the notation "Cease all Opencut activities in non-bonded areas." 

3 25. The April Violation Letter informed Bay that opencut activities occurred on 6.4 

4 acres outside the bonded portion of the Site in violation of the Act. In the letter, the Department 

5 acknowledged Bay's Request and bond submittal stating "that the application has not been 

6 approved," while the April Inspection confirmed that "Opencut operations were already being 

7 conducted on 6.4 acres outside the bonded area ... " 

8 26. During the July Inspection, the Department observed that Bay had continued to 

9 conduct, and were actively conducting, opencut operations in the non-bonded portion of the Site. 

10 27. By conducting opencut operations on the non-bonded portion of the Site, Bay 

11 failed to comply with the requirements of F2. of the Plan and the Permit. 

12 28. Bay violated Section 82-4-434(2), MCA, and ARM 17.24.225 by conducting 

13 opencut operations in the non-bonded area of the Site prior to receiving Department approval of 

14 Bay's Request. 

15 Violation 2: Failure to strip soils and protect soil stockpiles 

16 29. Section 82-4-434(3)(c), MCA, requires that soil and other suitable overburden be 

17 salvaged. 

18 30. ARM 17.24.219(1)(b)(i) requires that the operator will strip soil before opencut 

19 operation disturbances occur and that stockpiled soils be protected from erosion, contamination, 

20 compaction, and unnecessary disturbance. ARM 17.24.219(2) requires the operator to comply 

21 with all commitments required by that rule. 

22 31. Section D3 .3 .a. of the Plan states in part that "Soil and overburden will be 

23 stripped and stockpiled at the beginning of operations and as needed throughout the life of the 

24 operation." 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 5 



32. The Department's April Inspection report explained the Department's 

2 observations that Bay failed to strip soil in advance of mining, that the soil stockpiles were not 

3 protected, and that the soil stockpiles were unstable and eroding. 

4 33. The Department's July Inspection verified that on the south side of the Site, Bay 

5 failed to strip available soil and that the soil stockpiles were not protected. 

6 34. By failing to strip soil in advance of mining and protect soil by placing it into stable 

7 stockpiles, Bay failed to comply with the requirements of Section D3.3.a. of the Plan. 

8 35. Bay violated Section 82-4-434(3)(c), MCA, ARM 17.24.219(1) and (2), and 

9 ARM 17.24.225(1) by failing to strip and salvage soils, and protect the soil stockpiles in 

10 accordance with Section D3.3.a. of the Plan. 

11 Violation 3: Failure to maintain required 10-foot buffer 

12 36. ARM 17.24.219(1)(b)(i) requires that an operator maintain at least a 10-foot 

13 buffer stripped of soil and needed overburden along the edges ofhighwalls. 

14 3 7. · Section D4 .l.f. of the Plan states the operator will maintain a minimum 1 0-foot 

15 wide buffer zone stripped of soil along the edge of high walls. 

16 38. During the April Inspection, the Department observed that Bay failed to maintain 

17 a 10-foot buffer between the highwalls and unstripped soil. 

18 39. The April Violation Letter informed Bay that the failure to maintain a 1 0-foot 

19 buffer in some areas between the high walls and unstripped soil was a violation of the Act. 

20 40. The Department's July Inspection verified that Bay failed to maintain a 1 0-foot buffer 

21 between the highwalls and unstripped soils in some areas on the south side of the Site. 

22 41. Bay failed to comply with the requirements of Section D4.1.f. of the Plan. 

23 II 

24 II 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 6 



1 42. Bay violated ARM 17.24.219(l)(b)(i), ARM 17.24.225(1), and Section 82-4-

2 434(2), MCA, by failing to maintain at least a 1 0-foot buffer stripped of soil and overburden 

3 along the edges of the highwalls. 

4 Violation 4: Exceeding permitted highwalllength and height 

5 43. Section D3.6.b of the Plan states "i. The maximum length ofhighwall on-site at 

6 any given time will be: 1300 linear feet" and "ii. The maximum height ofhighwall on-site at any 

7 given time will be: 15 feet." 

8 44. During the April Inspection, the Department observed that Bay had a highwall 

9 measuring approximately 3,000 linear feet long and 20 feet high at the Site. 

10 45. The April Violation Letter informed Bay that having a highwall more than 1,300 

11 linear feet long and 15 feet high was a violation of the Act. 

Bay failed to comply with the requirements of Section D3.6.b of the Plan. 12 

13 

46. 

47. Bay violated Section 82-4-434(2), MCA, and ARM 17.24.225 by exceeding the 

14 permitted length and height for highwalls at the Site. 

15 Violation 5: Failure to mark permit boundary 

16 48. ARM 17.24.218(l)(a) requires that the Plan must include certain site preparation, 

17 mining, and processing plan commitments and information, including the placement and 

18 maintenance of permit boundary markers. ARM 17.24.218(2) requires the operator to comply 

19 with all commitments required by that rule. 

20 49. Section C6. of the Plan requires Bay to clearly m'ark the permit area boundary, 

21 including the boundary between the bonded and non-bonded portions of the Site. 

22 50. The Department's April Inspection observ~d that the boundaries between the 

23 bonded and non-bonded areas of the Site were not adequately marked. 

24 II 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 7 



1 51. The April Violation Letter informed Bay that failing to adequately mark the 

2 bonded and non-bonded areas ofthe Site was a violation of the Act 

3 52. The Department's July Inspection verified that the bonded and non-bonded areas 

4 as well as the Amendment 2 area were not adequately marked. 

5 53. Bay failed to comply with the requirement of Section C6. of the Plan. 

6 54. Bay violated ARM 17.24.218(1) and (2) and ARM 17.24.225(1) by failing to 

7 maintain boundary markers as required in the Plan. 

8 Administrative penalty 

9 55. Pursuant to Section 82-4-441 (2), MCA, the Department may assess an 

10 administrative penalty not to exceed $1,000 for a violation ofthe Act and no more than $1,000 

11 for each day during which a violation continues. 

12 56. The Department has calculated an administrative penalty in the amount of 

13 $73,280 for the violations cited herein. See Section 82-4-1001, MCA, and ARM 17.4.301 

14 through 17.4.308. Violation 3 and Violation 4 are combined for the purposes of calculating the 

15 penalty amount. See the Penalty Calculation Worksheet that is enclosed and incorporated by 

16 reference herein. 

17 57. In the event that Bay exercises its right to administrative review as explained in 

18 Paragraph 64, by no later than the date given for exchange of exhibits or another date ordered by 

19 the Board, the Department shall notify Bay whether it will seek to prove, based on information 

20 obtained from Bay or through discovery or subsequent inspections of the Site, an increase or 

21 decrease in the number of days of any violation described in the Penalty Calculation Worksheet. 

22 UI. ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

23 This Order is issued to Bay pursuant to the authority vested in the State of Montana, 

24 acting by and through the Department under the Act and administrative rules adopted thereunder, 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 8 



ARM Title 17, chapter 24, sub-chapter 2. Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact and 

2 Conclusions of Law and the authority cited above, the Department hereby ORDERS Bay to do 

3 the following: 

4 58. Upon service of this Order, Bay shall comply with all provisions of the Permit 

5 imd cease all opencut operations in the non-bonded portions of the Site until Bay's reclamation 

6 bond and 2nd Amendment are approved by the Department. 

7 59. Bay shall respond to deficiencies in the 2nd Amendment application within such 

8 deadline as may be set in the Department's Deficiency Notice (Notice) or, if no deadline is set in 

9 the Notice, within 30 days of receipt of that Notice. Bay's response to any Notice must be sent 

10 to: 

11 

12 

13 

14 60. 

Opencut Mining Program 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 

No later than 60 days after service of this Order, Bay shall pay to the Department 

15 the administrative penalty in the amount of $73,280 for the violations cited herein. The penalty 

16 must be paid by check or money order, made payable to the "Montana Department of 

17 Environmental Quality," and sent to: 

18 

19 

20 

John L. Arrigo, Administrator 
Enforcement Division 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 . 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 

21 61. Failure to comply with the requirements of this Order by the specified deadlines, as 

22 ordered herein, may result in the Department seeking a court order assessing civil penalties of not 

23 more than $5,000 for each day the violation continues pursuant to Section 82-4-441 (3), MCA. 

24 II 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 9 

( 



62. None of the requirements in this Order are intended to relieve Bay from 

2 complying with all applicable state, federal, and local statutes, rules, ordinances, orders, and 

3 permit conditions. 

4 63. The Department may take any additional enforcement action against Bay 

5 including the right to seek injunctive relief, civil penalties, and other available relief, for any 

6 violation of, or failure or refusal to comply with, this Order. 

7 64. The terms of this Order are satisfied when the Department acknowledges in 

8 writing that all corrective actions required under this Order have been completed. 

9 IV. NOTICE OF APPEAL RIGHTS 

10 65. Bay may appeal this Order under Section 82-4-441, MCA, by having your 

11 attorney file a written request for a hearing before the Montana Board of Environmental Review 

12 no later than 30 days after service of this Order. Any request for a hearing must be in writing 

13 and sent to: 

14 

15 

16 

17 66. 

Board Secretary 
Board of Environmental Review 
1520 East Sixth A venue 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 

Hearings are conducted as provided in the Montana Administrative Procedure 

18 Act, Title 2, chapter 4, part 6, MCA. Hearings are normally conducted in a manner similar to 

19 court proceedings, with witnesses being sworn and subject to cross-examination. Proceedings 

20 prior to the hearing may include formal discovery procedures, including interrogatories, requests 

21 for production of documents, and depositions. Because Bay is not an individual, Bay may not 

22 appear on its own behalf through an agent other than an attorney. See ARM 1.3.231(2) and 

. 
23 Section 37-61-201, MCA. 

24 II 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 10 



67. If a hearing is not requested within 3 0 days after service of this Order, the 

2 opportunity for a contested case appeal is waived. 

3 68. This Order becomes effective on the date of service. Service by mail is complete 

4 three business days after mailing. 

5 IT IS SO ORDERED: 

6 DATED this 19th day of August, 2014. 

7 STATE OF MONTANA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

8 

9 

10 JOHN L. ARRIGO, Administrat 
Enforcement Division 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTY ORDER Page 11 



Department of Environmental Quality - Enforcement Di 
Penalty Calculation Worksheet 

vision 

Name: nt Farms (Site} 
rmit No. 1872 

$1 ,000.00 
8/12/2014 
Daniel R. Kenne 

Penalt Calculation #1 
Descri tion of Vio lation: 

e Plan of Operation Bay violated Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 17.24.225(1) and Section F2. of th 
(Plan) by conducting opencut operations outside the bonded area at the Site. During its 
23, 2014 site inspections, the Department observed that Bay already conducted mining o 
bonded portion with in the Permit boundary. The Department had not yet approved Bay's 
Request to Commence Operations in a Non Bonded Area (Request or bond at the time 

I. BASE PENALTY 
Nature 
Ex lanation: 

April16, 2014 and July 
perations outside the 
March 14, 2014 
of the inspection. 

ary prior to receiving Conducting opencut operations in non-bonded portions within the Site's permitted bound 
Department approval of the Request has an adverse impact on the Department's ability 
duties and responsibilities. If the Request has not been reviewed and/or approved by th 
conducting opencut operations in non-bonded areas within the Site's permitted boundary 
unable to determine if the bond is adequate or if there are adequate resources available 

to fulfill its statutory 
e Department prior to 
, the Department is 
to reclaim the affected 

land. The nature of the violation is Harm. 

Potential to Harm Human Health or the Environment 
Potential to lm act Administration 

Gravit and Extent 
Gravit Ex lanation : 
Pursuant to ARM 17.4.303(5)(b) , the Department has determined that fail ing to operate 
permit has a moderate gravity. 
·Extent Ex lanation: 

X 

in accordance with a 

tions in non-bonded 
quate reclamation bond 

The Department's expectation is that an opencut operator will not conduct opencut opera 
portions 'of a site until the Department determines that the operator has provided an ade 
and approves an operator's Request to Commence Operations in a Non Bonded Area. 
determined that the fact that Bay conducted opencut operations on approximately 9.8 ac 
prior to receiving Department approval constitutes a major deviation from the regulatory 

The Department has 
res non-bonded acres 
requirement. 

Therefore, Extent is Ma'or. 

Extent Ma'or 
Ma'or 0.85 
Moderate 0.70 
Minor 0.55 

Harm to Human Health or the Environment 
Gravit 

Moderate Minor 
0.70 0.55 
0.55 0.40 
0.40 0.25 Gravit and Extent Factor: 

Impact to Administration 

BASE PENALTY (Maximum Penalty Authority x Gravity and Extent Factor): 

0.701 

$700.00 

Page 1 of 11 



II. ADJUSTED BASE PENAL TV 
A. Circumstances (up to 30% added to Base Penalty) 
Explanation: 
As a permitted entity engaged in opencut mining, Bay should have been knowledgeable about the Permit and 
that the Department must approve the Request and ensure that adequate bond was submitted prior to 
commencing opencut activity in the non-bonded portion within the Site's permitted boundary. Bay had control 
over the circumstances surrounding the violation and should have foreseen that the failure to comply with 
Permit and Plan requirements would result in a violation . Further, the Department's Apri12014 Inspection 
Report stated '"'Cease all Opencut activities in non-bonded areas." Therefore, an upward adjustment of 30% to 
the base penalty for circumstances is appropriate. 

I Circumstances Percent: I 
Circumstances Adjustment (Base Penalty x Circumstances Percent) 

B. Good Faith and Cooperation (up to 10% subtracted from Base Penalty) 
Explanation: 
Bay did not promptly report or voluntarily disclose facts related to the violation to the Department. 
reduction in the Base Penalty is calculated for Good Faith and Cooperation. 

I Good Faith & Coop. Percent:J 
Good Faith & Coop Adjustment (Base Penalty x G F & Coop. Percent) 

C. Amounts Voluntarily Expended (AVE) (up to 10% subtracted from Base Penalty) 
Explanation: 

0 .30 
$210.00 

Therefore, no 

0.00 
$0.00 

The Department is not aware of any amounts voluntarily expended by Bay to mitigate the violation or its impact 
beyond what was necessary to come into compliance; therefore, no reduction is being allowed. 

I AVE Percent: I 
Amounts Voluntarily Expended Adjustment (Base Penalty x AVE Percent) 

ADJUSTED BASE PENAL TV SUMMARY 

Ill. DAYS OF VIOLATION 
Explanation: 

Base Penalty 
Circumstances 
Good Faith & Cooperation 
Amt. Voluntarily Expended 
ADJUSTED BASE PENAL TV 

0.00 
$0.00 

$700.00 
$210.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$910.00 

Section 82-4-441 (2), MCA, provides, in part, that the Department may assess an administrative penalty for the 
violation and an additional administrative penalty for each day the violation continues. The Department 
conducted site inspections on April 16, 2014 and July 23, 2014 and observed that Bay was conducting opencut 
operations in the non-bonded portion of the site. Estimating that Bay only conducted operations Mondays 
through Fridays, the Department calculated that Bay operated in the non-bonded area for at least 65 days. 
Therefore, the Department is using 65 days of violation to calculate this penalty. 

I Number of Days: I 65 
ADJUSTED BASE PENAL TV x NUMBER OF DAYS: $59,150.00 

IV. OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 
I Explanation: 
I Not applicable. 

OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE TOTAL:I.__ _____ ....;::$;.;:..0.:..::.0.=..~0 

Page 2 of 11 



V. ECONOMIC BENEFIT 
Ex lanation: 
Bay submitted a Request to Commence Operations in a Non Bonded Area form , and a bond, to the Department 
on March 14, 2014. As Bay submitted the bond, even though not approved by the Department prior to the April 
16, 20141nspection, the Department determined that any economic benefit realized by Bay is negligible and is 
not addin an economic benefit to the enalty. 

ECONOMIC BENEFIT REALIZED: 1~.--_____ ~$0:::..:·-=-00:::..J 

Page 3 of 11 



Responsible Party Name: Bay Materials, LLC (Bay) at Norment Farms .(Site) 
FID: 2325 Permit No. 1872 
Statute: OQencut Mining Act (Act}_ 
Maximum Penalty Authority: $1 ,000.00 

Penalty Calculation #2 
Description of Violation : 
Bay violated the Permit and Plan by failing to protect stockpiled soils from erosion, contamination, compactions 
and unnecessary disturbance, and failing to strip and salvage soil. Section D3.3.a. of the Plan as approved by 
the Permit, states the operator will strip and salvage soil before conducting opencut operations on undisturbed 
land. During the April 2014 and July 2014 inspections, the Department observed that Bay failed to strip all 
available soil and that the soil stockpiles were not protected as they were unstable and eroding. 

I. BASE PENALTY 
Nature 
Explanation: 
The Department requires operators to submit a Plan, which details how they intend to mine and conduct 
reclamation . This Plan includes the salvage and storage of soil and is incorporated as part of the Permit. 
Adequate soil is necessary for successful reclamation . Bay failed to protect stockpiled soil and salvage soil as 
required by its Plan. This failure may result in insufficient soils being available to complete reclamation as set 
forth in the Plan. The failure to adequately salvage and store topsoil poses a serious potential to harm human 
health and the environment. 

Potential to Harm Human Health or the Environment! X 
Potential to Impact Administration! 

G 't ravny an dE xten t 
Gravity Explanation: 
Pursuant to ARM 17.4.303(5)(b), the failure to construct or operate in accordance with a permit or approval has 
a moderate g_ravity. 
Extent Explanation: 
The extent of deviation for this violation is moderate. The expectation is that the operator will protect salvaged 
soils from contamination to make them available for reuse and not conduct opencut operations on undisturbed 
land. 

Harm to Human Health or the Environment 
G it rav ty_ 

Extent Major Moderate Minor 
Major 0.85 0.70 0.55 
Moderate 0.70 0.55 0.40 
Minor 0.55 0.40 0.25 Gravity and Extent Factor: I 0.551 

Impact to Administration 

BASE PENALTY (Maximum Penalty Authority x Gravity and Extent Factor): $550.00 

Page 4 of 11 



II. ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY 
A. Circumstances u to 30% added to Base Penalt 
Ex lanation: 

hould have foreseen that by not following Bay had control over the circumstances surrounding the violation and s 
the Plan by failing to protect the stockpiled soils and not conducting ope 
would result in a violation . As a permitted entity, Bay should be knowle 
Act, its Permit and the Plan. Therefore, an upward adjustment of 20% 

ncut operations on undisturbed land 
dgeable about the requirements of the 
to the base penalty for circumstances is 

appropriate. 

Circumsta nces Percent: I 
Circumstances Adjustment (Base Penalty x Circumsta nces Percent) 

B. Good Faith and Coo eration u to 10% subtracted from Base P enalty) 
Ex lanation: 

elation to the Department. Bay did not promptly report or voluntarily disclose facts related to the vi 
reduction in the Base Penalty is calculated for Good Faith and Coopera 

Good Faith & C 
Good Faith & Coop Adjustment (Base Penalty x G F & C 

tion . 
oop. Percent: I 
oop. Percent) 

C. Amounts Voluntaril Ex ended AVE u to 10% subtracted fro m Base Penalty) 
Ex lanation: 

0.20 
$110.00 

Therefore, no 

0.00 
$0.00 

The Department is not aware of any amounts voluntarily expended by B 
beyond what was required to come into compliance; therefore, no redu 

ay to mitigate the violation or its impact 
ction is being allowed. 

AVE Percent: I 
Amounts Voluntarily Expended Adjustment (Base Penalty x AVE Percent) 

ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY SUMMARY 

Ill. DAYS OF VIOLATION 
Ex lanation: 

peration 

Base Penalty 
Circumstances 
Good Faith & Coo 
Amt. Voluntarily E 
ADJUSTED BAS 

xpended 
E PENALTY 

0.00 
$0.00 

$550.00 
$110.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$660.00 

lan by failing to protect stockpiled soils The Department has determined that Bay violated the Permit and the P 
and strip and salvage soil for at least six days, the day before, the day o 
April 16, 2014 and July 23, 3014 inspections. Therefore, the Departmen 

f, and the day after the Department's 
t is calculating a penalty based on six 

da s of violation . 
Nu mber of Days:l 6 

ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY x NUMBE R OF DAYS: $3,960.00 

IV. OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 

OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQU IRE TOTAL: I $0.00 

V. ECONOMIC BENEFIT 
Ex lanation: 
The Department has determined that Bay did not gain a significant econ 
Permit requirement and the Plan for the three days of violation . Thereto 
economic benefit for the violation . 

omic benefit by failing to comply with a 
re, the Department is not seeking 

ECONOMIC BENEFI T REALIZED: I $0.00 

Page 5 of 11 



Responsible Party Name: Bay Materials, LLC (Bay) at Normont Farms (Site) 
FlO: 2325 Permit No. 1872 
Statute: Opencut Mining Act (Act) 
Maximum Penalty Authority: $1,000.00 

Penalty Calculation #3 
Description of Violation : 
Bay violated the Permit and Plan by failing to maintain a 1 0-foot buffer stripped of soil and overburden along the 
edges of the highwalls in violation of ARM 17.24.219(1)(b)(i) and Section D4.1 .f of the Plan. Further, Bay 
violated the Plan, Section D3.6.b, by having highwalls measuring greater than 1,300 feet long and 15 feet high. 
During the April16, 2014 inspection, the Department observed that Bay had highwalls measuring approximately 
3,000 linear feet long and 20 feet high and had not maintained a 1 0-foot buffer between the highwalls and 
unstripped soil in some areas of the Site. During the July 23, 2014 Inspection, the Department observed that 
Bay had not maintained a 1 0-foot buffer between the highwalls and unstripped soil in some areas of the Site. 

I. BASE PENAL TV 
Nature 
Explanation: 
The failure to comply with Permit requirements (including the Plan) poses the potential to harm the environment. 
Because Bay failed to provide a 1 0-foot buffer stripped of soil and overburden along the edges of the highwall , 
Bay risked losing topsoil and overburden as the highwall is mined or erodes. Further, by having more than the 
permitted 1 ,300 linear feet of highwall, Bay increased the danger that the failure of the non-permitted highwall 
poses to employees and the public. 

Potential to Harm Human Health or the Environment! X 
Potential to Impact Administration! 

G dE rav1ty an xtent 
Gravity Explanation: 
Pursuant to ARM 17.4.303(5)(b), the Department has determined that the failure to construct or operate in 
accordance with a permit or approval has a moderate gravity. 

Extent Explanation: 
Pursuant to ARM 17.303(4)(a), a violation has a major extent if it constitutes a major deviation from the 
applicable requirements. Bay's failure to maintain a 1 0-foot buffer zone from the highwalls and in exceeding the 
permitted limit for highwalls by approximately 1, 700 linear feet, as outlined in the Plan, is a major deviation from 
Permit requirements. 

Harm to Human Health or the Environment 
G 't ravny 

Extent Major Moderate Minor 
Major 0.85 0.70 0.55 .• 

Moderate 0.70 0.55 0.40 
Minor 0.55 0.40 0.25 Gravity and Extent Factor: I 0.70J 

Impact to Administration 

BASE PENALTY (Maximum Penalty Authority x Gravity and Extent Factor): $700.00 

Page 6 of 11 



II. ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY 
A. Circumstances u to 30% added to Base Penalt 
Ex lanation: 
Bay had control over the circumstances surrounding the violation and should have foreseen that failing to 
comply with a Permit requirement and the Plan would result in a violation . As a permitted entity, Bay should be 
knowledgeable abou.t the requirements of the Act. Therefore, an upward adjustment of 20% to the base penalty 
for circumstances is appropriate. · 

Circumstances Percent: 0.30 
Circumstances Adjustment (Base Penalty x Circumstances Percent) $210.00 

Ex lanation: 
Bay did not promptly report or voluntarily disclose facts related to the violation to the Department. Therefore, no 
reduction in the Base Penalty is calculated for Good Faith and Cooperation. 

0.00 
Good Faith & Coop Adjustment (Base Penalty x G F & Coop. Percent) $0.00 

Ex lanation: 
The Department is not aware of any amounts voluntarily expended by Bay to mitigate the violation or its impact 
be ond what was required to come into com liance; therefore, no reduction is bein allowed. 

AVE Percent: 
Amounts Voluntarily Expended Adjustment (Base Penalty x AVE Percent) 

ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY SUMMARY 

Ill. DAYS OF VIOLATION 
Ex lanation: 

Base Penalty 
Circumstances 
Good Faith & Cooperation 
Amt. Voluntarily Expended 
ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY 

0.00 
$0.00 

$700.00 
$210.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$910.00 

The Department has determined that Bay violated the Permit and the Plan for at least six days, the day before, 
the day of, and the day after the Department's April16, 2014 inspection and July 23, 3014 inspection . 
Therefore, the Department is calculating a penalty based on six days of violation. 

Number of Da s: 6 
ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY x NUMBER OF DAYS: $5,460.00 

IV. OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 

OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE TOTAL:.__ _____ ____::$'""'0.:.;;:.0...:;.JO 

V. ECONOMIC BENEFIT 
Ex lanation: 
The Department has determined that Bay did not gain a significant economic benefit by failing to comply with a 
Permit requirement and the Plan for the three days of violation. Therefore, the Department is not seeking 
economic benefit for the violation. 

ECONOMIC BENEFIT REALIZED: '--------...::!:$~0::.::..0~0 

Page 7 of 11 



Responsible Party Name: Bay Materials, LLC (Bay) at Norment Farms _iSite) 
FlO: 2325 Permit No. 1872 
Statute: Opencut Mining Act (Act) 
Maximum Penalty Authority: $1,000.00 

Penalty Calculation #4 
Description of Violation: 
Bay violated ARM 17.24.218(2) and 17.24.225(1) by failing to install and maintain permit and bonded area 
boundary markers as required by the approved Plan and Permit. 

I. BASE PENALTY 
· Nature 
Explanation: 
The failure to install and maintain permit and bonded area boundary markers poses a potential to harm human 
health or the environment. The failure to mark the boundaries of the permitted and bonded area raises a very 
real possibility that opencut operations may stray into unpermitted areas, the impacts of which have not been 
reviewed by the Department and are not bonded. 

Potential to Harm Human Health or the Environment! X 
Potential to Impact Administration! 

G dE rav1ty an xtent 
Gravity Explanation: 
Pursuant to ARM 17.4.303(5)(b), the Department has determined that the failure to construct or operate in 
accordance with a permit or approval has a moderate gravity. 
Extent Explanation: 
The extent of deviation for this violation is moderate. The expectation is that the operator will install and 
maintain permit area boundary markers to ensure that opencut operations are not conducted outside the permit 
or bonded boundaries. Bay failed to install adequate boundary markers. Specifically, the bonded and non-
bonded areas were not adequately marked . 

Harm to Human Health or the Environment 
G 't raVJ[Y 

Extent Major Moderate Minor 
Major 0.85 0.70 0.55 
Moderate 0.70 0.55 0.40 
Minor 0.55 0.40 0.25 Gravity and Extent Factor: I 0.551 

Impact to Administration 

BASE PENALTY (Maximum Penalty Authority x Gravity and Extent Factor): $550.00 

Page 8 of 11 



II. ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY 
A. Circumstances u to 30% added to Base Penalt 
Ex lanation: 

re of the requirement not 
ay had control of the 

As a regulated entity that conducts opencut operations in Montana, Bay should be awa 
to violate the accepted work plan by failing to install and maintain boundary markers. B 
violation and shou ld have realized that the failure to install and maintain boundary mar 
violation . Therefore, an upward adjustment of 20% to the base penalty for circumstanc 

kers would result in a 
es is appropriate. · 

Circumstances Percent: 0.20 
Circumstances Adjustment (Base Penalty x Circumstances Percent) $110.00 

Ex lanation: 
Bay did not promptly report or voluntarily disclose facts related to the violation to the D epartment. Therefore, no 
reduction in the Base Penalty is calculated for Good Faith and Cooperation. 

Good Faith & Coo . Percent: 0.00 
Good Faith & Coop Adjustment (Base Penalty x G F & Coop. Percent) $0.00 

C. Amounts Voluntaril Ex ended AVE u to 10% subtracted from Base Penal ty) 
Ex lanation: 
The Department is not aware of any amounts Voluntarily expended by Bay to mitigate 
beyond what was required to come into compliance; therefore, no reduction is being a 

AVE Percent: 

the violation or its impact 

Amounts Voluntarily Expended Adjustment (Base Penalty x AVE Percent) 

ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY SUMMARY 

Ill. DAYS OF VIOLATION 
Ex lanation: 

Base Penalty 
Circumstances 
Good Faith & Cooperation 
Amt. Voluntarily Expended 
ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY 

The Department has determined that Bay violated the Permit and the Plan for at least 
the day of, and the day after the Department's April16, 2014 inspection and July 23, 3 
Therefore, the Department is calculating a penalty based on six days of violation. 

Number of Da s: 
ADJUSTED BASE PENALTY x NUMBER OF DAYS: 

IV. OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 

OTHER MATTERS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE TOTAL: 

V. ECONOMIC BENEFIT 
Ex lanation: 

II owed. 

0.00 
$0.00 

$550.00 
$110.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$660.00 

six days, the day before, 
014 inspection. 

6 
$3,960.00 

$0.00 

kers . The Department Bay gained a delayed economic benefit by failing to install and maintain boundary mar 
however considers the amount of savings that Bay gained by not installing and mainta 
be minimal, as operators generally drive steel fence posts at locations on the perimete 
bonded areas to mark the boundary. The Department estimates these costs to be less 
dollars. Because Bay will need to bear these costs in any event, the Department is no 

ining boundary markers to 
r of the permitted and 
than two hundred 

t adding an amount for 
economic benefit. 

ECONOMIC BENEFIT REALIZED: $0.00 

Page 9 of 11 



Responsible Party Name: Bay Materials, LLC (Bay) at Normont Farms (Site) 
FID: 2325 Permit No. 1872 
Statute: Opencut Mining Act (Act) 

VI. HISTORY 
Explanation: 
Bay has incurred four violations documented in an order within the past three years . Use of all of these 
h·istorical violations in the calculation of Total History Percent would exceed the 30% .maximum. Therefore, the 
following three violations from DEQ Docket No. OC-12-15 issued July 13, 2012 Were used to calculate History 
of Violation : (1) Failure to strip and salvage soils and protect stockplies. Nature= Harm. (2) Failure to maintain 
1 0-foot buffer and exceeding permitted highwalls. Nauture = Harm. (3) Failure to install and maintain permit 
and bonded area boundary markers. Nature= Harm 

Historical Violation: Harm to Human Health or the Environment- 10% 
Historical Violation: Impact to Administration - 5% 

Historical Violation #1 Percent: 
Historical Violation #2 Percent: 
Historical Violation #3 Percent: 

To tal History Percent (cannot exceed 30%): 

Base Penaltv #1 
Base Penalty #2 
Base Penalty #3 
Base Penalty #4 

Total Base Penalties: 

0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.30 

$700.00 
$550.00 
$700.00 
$550.00 

$2,500.00 

HISTORY ADJUSTMENT (Base Penalty x History Percent): Ll -----~$!:.!.7..!:::5~0.:.:::,0~01 

Page 10 of 11 



Department of Environmental Quality- Enforc 
Penalty Calculation Summary 

ement Division 

Name: rmont Farms (Site\ 
rmit No. 1872 

Maximum Penalt 
Date: 

Signature of Employee Calculating Penalty: 

..... ~ - ~ 

enaltv #4 \ Penaltv #1 Penaltv #2 Penaltv #3 P 

I. Base Penalty (Maximum Penalty Authority x Matrix Factor) 

Maximum Penalty Authority: $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1 ,000.00 $1,000.00 
Percent Harm - Gravity and Extent: 0.70 0.55 0.70 0.55 

Percent Impact- Gravity: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Base Penalty: $700.00 $550.00 $700.00 $550.00 

II. Adjusted Base Penalty 
Base Penalty: $700.00 $550.00 $700.00 $550.00 

Circumstances: $210.00 $110.00 $210.00 $110.00 
Good Faith ·and Cooperation: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Amount Voluntarily Expended: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Adjusted Base Penalty: $910.00 $660.00 $910.00 $660.00 

Ill. Days of Violation or 

Number of Occurrences 65 6 6 6 
Total Adjusted Penalty: $59,150.00 $3,960.00 $5,460.00 $3,960.00 

IV. Other Matters as Justice 
May Require $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

V. Economic Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

VI. History 
Subtotal(s) $59,150.00 $3,960.00 $5,460.00 $3,960.00 

T otal calculated penalty: 

$1 000.00 

$72,530.00 

$750.00 
$72,530.00 

$73,280.00 

Page 11 of 11 




	Agenda
	I.A.1 072514-minutes
	III.A.1
	ExecSummary
	Adoption Notice
	HB 521_HB 311
	Testimony
	Presiding Officer Report
	DRAFT_Notice of Amendment

	III.A.2
	ExecSummary
	Adoption Notice
	HB 521_HB 311
	Presiding Officer Report
	DRAFT Notice

	III.B.1
	BER2014-05 WQ

	III.B.2
	BER2014-06 WQ

	III.B.3
	BER2014-07 OC
	Notice of Violation
	Hearing Request




